
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Gillian Scott 
Service: Committee Services 
Direct line: 01784 444243 
E-mail: G.Scott@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 9 March 2021 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Members' Code of Conduct Committee 
 
 

Date: 

 

Wednesday, 17 March 2021 

Time: 

 

6.00 pm 

Place: 

 

Teams conference call 

 
To the members of the Members' Code of Conduct Committee 
 
 
Councillors: Independent Members 
 
M.M. Attewell 
C.L. Barratt 
I.J. Beardsmore 
R.D. Dunn 
K.M. Grant 
I.T.E. Harvey 
R.W. Sider BEM 
V. Siva 
 

I. Winter (Chairman) 
Dylan Price (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors are reminded to notify Committee Services of any Gifts and Hospitality offered 
to you since the last Council meeting so that these may be entered in the Gifts and 
Hospitality Declaration book.  
 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 3 - 6 

 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 04 February 2021 as a 
correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members. 
 

 

4.   Proposed Changes to the Constitution 7 - 108 

 To consider proposed changes to the Constitution which has been 
reviewed in accordance with the requirements of a Committee system 
and make a recommendation to Council. 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Members' Code of Conduct Committee 
4 February 2021 

 
 

Present: 
Ian Winter (Chairman) 

Dylan Price (Vice-Chairman)  
 
Councillors: 

M.M. Attewell 

C.L. Barratt 

I.J. Beardsmore 

R.D. Dunn 

K.M. Grant 

R.W. Sider BEM 

V. Siva 

 

 

I.T.E. Harvey 

Apologies:  There were none. 
 
Councillors in attendance:  
Councillor R. Barratt, Councillor C. Bateson, Councillor A. Brar, 
Councillor S. Buttar,  Councillor V.J. Leighton, Councillor O. 
Rybinski.  
 

28/21   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

29/21   Disclosures of Interest  
 

There were none.  
 

30/21   New model Code of Conduct  
 

The Committee considered a report that proposed a recommendation to 
Council the adoption of the new Local Government Association (LGA) Model 
Code of Conduct from the date of Annual Council.  
  
The Group Head of Corporate Governance explained that the new code had 
developed over time after extensive consultation and had been designed to 
address the changing world and addressed more current issues such as the 
use of social media.  
 
The Committee were advised that the development of the code had been 
centred around the work of the Committee for Standards in Public Life and the 
purpose of the Code was to ensure there would be a clear and consistent 
approach across all Councils at all levels. The Code would still be centred 
around the Nolan principles.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
Members' Code of Conduct Committee, 4 February 2021 - continued 

 

2 
 

 
The Group Head of Corporate Governance explained that the Code 
encouraged Councils to take ownership of the Code and that standards and 
expectations of conduct were clearly defined.  
 
The Committee noted that the Code paid particular attention to ensuring 
people were treated with respect, that bullying and harassment were clearly 
defined and that members must not behave in a manner that would bring the 
Council into disrepute.  
 
Members expressed the view that they were happy to adopt the Code which 
was clear, robust and would give the Council power to impose sanctions if the 
sanctions were adopted and enacted into legislation.  
 
Some members expressed the view that the Council needed to exercise 
caution if they were to impose sanctions as it could be abused if the political 
composition of the Council were to change and one party became dominant.  
 
Members agreed that they supported the adoption of the Code and committee 
members should lead the way by adhering to the Code and showing respect 
to each other.  
 
Resolved to recommend that Council approve the adoption of the new LGA 
Model Code of Conduct from the date of the Annual Council.  
 

31/21   Committee of Standards in Public Life Recommendations - 
Update  
 

The Group Head of Corporate Governance introduced the report and 
explained that the Council had complied with a number of the best practice 
recommendations and that any outstanding areas would be addressed as part 
of the Constitution review and the Councils change to a committee system 
governance model.   
 
Members expressed the view that the update was excellent and would assure 
residents that they could have confidence in their elected members.  
 
The Committee thank the Group Head of Corporate Governance for her work 
on the report.  
 
Resolved to note the update on progress and actions taken.  
 

32/21   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

The Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following matter on the grounds 
that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 

Page 4



 
Members' Code of Conduct Committee, 4 February 2021 - continued 

 

3 
 

The Committee in making its decision had regard to all circumstances and 
was satisfied that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
Resolved that in the interest of having an open discussion about the matter, 
the press and public are excluded from the meeting. 
 

33/21   Update on complaints relating to the Code of Conduct  
 

The Group Head of Corporate Governance introduced the report and asked 
the Committee to note the decisions taking by the Monitoring Officer in 
relation to the complaints detailed.  
 
Members discussed the implications of adopting the new LGA Model Code of 
Conduct in particular what was acceptable behaviour in Council meetings, 
Members noted that a degree of moderate, provocative and emotional 
speeches were expected to be tolerated but that bullying and harassment was 
not.  
 
Members queried if decisions taken by the Monitoring Officer could be 
appealed and noted that the Committee could ask her to re-open a case at 
this committee but  not after as the matter would then be fully closed.  
 
In response to members questions the Group Head of Corporate Governance 
confirmed that if a complaint was received about a member that member 
would be informed as soon as possible.  
 
Members expressed concern that if a member of the Committee had been 
involved in a complaint they should not be able to preside over the 
consideration of that matter. The Group Head of Corporate Governance 
explained that if a panel were required to consider a complaint a balanced 
panel would be selected but that she would take on board members concerns 
in relation to complaints coming back before the Committee as a whole.  
 
Resolved to note the decisions taken by the Monitoring Officer in relation to 
the complaints detailed in the report.  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 09/03/21 16:52 

Member’s Code of Conduct Committee  

 

18 March 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 On 30 July 2020 this Council resolved: “to implement a change in decision-
making governance arrangements, comprising the cessation of the current 
Leader and Cabinet model of governance and the implementation of a Full 
Committee model of governance. This is to be developed during 2020 with a 
view to the arrangements taking effect at the earliest opportunity, but no later 
than the commencement of the next Council Municipal Year in May 2021, 
subject to a legally and constitutionally robust process. The changes are to be 
debated and agreed by the Council.”  

1.2 Since that paving motion in July 2020 there has been a considerable amount 
of work undertaken by Committee System Working Group and officers on the 
structure of the committees and processes. These decisions have enabled 
the constitution to be updated (as necessary) to enable the system to operate.  

1.3 The amendments to the constitution could not be made until key decisions 
had been made by the Committee System Working Group. The turnaround 
time for the amendments to the constitution has been short and therefore the 
focus has been on those parts that need to be amended to operate the 
committee system. The policies and protocols which can operate as is, have 
not been amended yet and will come forward for revision in due course.  

1.4 Attached at appendix A is the summary of the changes to the constitution. 
Also appended to this report are the updated version of the relevant sections 
and parts of the constitution. Please note that the numbering and formatting 
will be updated on final production.  

 Revisions to the Constitution required to change to a 
Committee System  

Purpose of the report To make a recommendation to Council 

 

Report Author Victoria Statham 

Confidential No 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Recommend the amendments to the constitution to the 
Council for adoption with a move to a committee system of 
governance. 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

To ensure that the Council has a fit for purpose constitution 
which enables the committee system to take effect and 
operate.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
 

1.5 The statutory requirements for the change of governance arrangements are 
set out in the Localism Act 2011. To change from a cabinet system to a 
committee system, a local authority must: 

(a) Pass a resolution to change the governance arrangements; 

(b) As soon as practicable after passing the resolution, make the provisions 
of the new arrangements available for inspection by the public; 

(c) Publish in one or more newspapers circulating in the area a notice which 
describes the features of the new system and timescales for 
implementation; and   

(d) Once the resolution to change the governance arrangements has been 
passed and the publicity requirements complied with the authority is 
required to cease operating their old form of governance arrangements 
and start operating their new arrangements. This must take place at the 
first annual meeting or later annual meeting as specified in that 
resolution. Transitional arrangements may be required to bridge any gap 
between the previous arrangements ending and the new structure 
beginning. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The option is to recommend the amendments as drafted to the Council for 
adoption to enable the committee system to operate or to recommend any 
amendments to that which is proposed.  

2.2 The amendments have been provided to the Committee System Working 
Party prior to this meeting and there has been a meeting of that group since 
to discuss.  

3. Financial implications 

3.1 The financial implications for the change have already been reported to the 
Council.  

4. Timetable for implementation 

4.1 The amendments to the constitution will be presented to the Council on the 25 
March 2021 for adoption as part of the resolution to move to the committee 
system.  

4.2 If the resolution is passed to move to the committee system this has to be 
adopted at the Annual Council Meeting and will come into effect thereafter. 

 
Background papers: There are none.  
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Summary of changes to the constitution 
Updated constitution sections  

Page 8



Appendix 1 

Summary of proposed changes to the Constitution 

17 March 2021 

 

Part 1 - Introduction 

1.1 Constitution summary and explanation – revisions to remove reference to 
Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, ensure that the section reads 
easily and that the explanation of the Committee style of governance is as 
simple as it can be.   

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution 

1.2 Article 1 – The Constitution - removal of a purpose of the Constitution, to 
‘ensure no-one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they were directly 
involved’ as the Committees will undertake their own scrutiny. 

1.3 Article 2 – The Council and its members - no change. 

1.4 Article 3 – The Public - removal of references to Cabinet, Leader and 
Overview and Scrutiny   

1.5 Article 4 – The Council - removal of references to Cabinet and executive 
functions. 

1.6 Article 5 – The Mayor - removal of references to Cabinet. 

1.7 Article 6 – The Leader - re-written role of the Leader under the Committee 
system. 

1.8 Article 7 – Service and Regulatory Committees - updated to include the 
Service and other committees under the new arrangements. 

1.9 Article 8 – Standards Committee - amended to reflect change of name to 
Standards Committee. Added the function of managing a programme of 
member development 

1.10 Article 9 – Joint Arrangements - removal of references to Cabinet and Leader. 

1.11 Article 10 – Officers - removal of references to Cabinet and Leader.   

1.12 Article 11 – Decision making - Inclusion of objectives for establishing 
Committee system. Updated level at which a matter is defined as a Key 
Decision to £250k from £164k. This has not been increased for some years 
and previously reflected old EU procurement levels. It would be in the 
discretion of the Council to raise it higher if considered appropriate. Removed 
references to executive arrangements and Cabinet. 

1.13 Article 12 – Finance, Contracts and Legal matters - amendment to officer title 
and removal of reference to Cabinet functions. 

1.14 Article 13 – Review and Revision - amended references from Members Code 
of Conduct Committee to Standards Committee. Removal of reference to 
Standards. 

1.15 Article 14 – Suspension and Interpretation - change to officer title. 

 

 

Page 9



Appendix 1 

Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions 

1.16 (a) Scheme of Delegation general introduction – removal of reference to 
functions delegated to the Leader, which are now delegated to Committees. 
Changes to improve the clarity of information on how and to whom 
delegations are made under the Committee system. Included additional 
requirements on officers when exercising delegated powers. Redefined 
urgent decisions by Chief executive to be taken in consultation with both 
Chair and Vice-Chair of a Committee. Removal of references to Cabinet. 

(b) Terms of reference of Committees – these have been entirely re-written to 
address the new Committee structure.  

1.17 (c) Delegated functions in consultation with Cabinet Members or the Leader – 
have been amended to be in consultation with the relevant Committee Chair 
and Vice-Chair. 

1.18 (f) Roles of different councillors - updated to reflect new role of Leader, 
Deputy Leader, Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs. Many of the removed 
executive duties of portfolio holders have been included as standard terms of 
reference for all Committees in Part 3b, at the request of the Working Group. 

Part 4 - Procedural Rules 

1.19 (a) Council Standing Orders – these have been extensively re-written 

i) replacement throughout of references to Cabinet and Leader with Chair 
and Vice-Chairs 

ii) Change to procedures at Annual and ordinary Council meetings 

iii) Inclusion of procedures for Committees 

iv) Change to requirement for notifying questions from public and 
councillors from 5 days to 7 days before the meeting. This will enable 
all questions to appear on the agenda, even if it is necessary to clarify 
the question with the questioner and avoid the need for a supplement. 

v) Inclusion of a number limit on questions 

vi) Ward issues to now be dealt with at Committee meetings 

vii) Clarification on number of speakers allowed for motions without Notice 

viii) Some further clarity on the rules around amendments, right of reply and 
closure motions 

ix) Clarity on voting at regulatory Committees 

x) Inclusion of reference to audio/visual recording of meetings 

1.20 (b) Reservation Scheme – this is a new procedure in the Constitution which 
allows Committees to refer determination of matters to Council. 

1.21 (c) Substitution Scheme – this is a new procedure in the Constitution which 
sets out how substitutions may be made for Committee meetings  

Page 10



Updated 25/03/21  Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 

CONSTITUTION OF SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PART 1 – Summary and explanation 

The Council's Constitution 

This introduction, together with all the documents that follow, make up the 
Constitution of Spelthorne Borough Council. The Constitution is the 
governance framework within which the Council operates.  It is approved at 
a meeting of the Borough Council and kept under review.  It sets out how 
decisions are made and the procedures which are followed.  Some of these 
processes are required by the law, while others are a matter for the Council 
to choose. Nothing in this Constitution supersedes legislation. 

What’s in the Constitution? 

The Constitution is divided into 15 articles (Part 2) which set out the basic 
rules governing the Council’s business.  These are followed by three 
sections: 

Part 3 - Decision Making - this section includes details of the Council’s 
decision-making mechanisms and a scheme of delegation setting out who 
is responsible for taking which decision; 

Part 4 - Procedure Rules – this section details how decisions are to be 
taken;   

Part 5 - Codes and Protocols – this section sets out the expected standards 
of behaviour for Officers (employees of the Council) and Elected Members 
(councillors) and the corporate Management of the Council.  

. 

Article 1 of the Constitution sets out the Council’s key aims in preparing the 
Constitution.  Articles 2-15 explain the rights of the public and how the key 
parts of the Council operate.  These are: 

 The Council and its Members (Article 2) 

 The Public and the Council (Article 3) 

 The Council (Article 4) 

 The Mayor (Article 5) 

 Leader of the Council (Article 6) 

 The  

 Service, Regulatory and Other Committees (Article 7 ) 

 The Standards Committee (Article 8) 

 Joint Arrangements (Article 9) 

 Officers (Article 10) 

 Decision making (Article 11) 

 Finance, contracts and legal matters (Article 12) 

Page 11



Updated 25/03/21  Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 

 Review and revision of the Constitution (Article 13 ) 

 Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution (Article 
14) 

How the Council operates 

Councillors 

The Council is composed of 39 councillors elected every four years.   
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their Ward.   Only 
registered electors of the borough or those living, working or owning 
property in the borough are eligible to seek election for the office of 
Councillor. Their overriding duty is to the whole borough, but they have a 
special duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them. 

Councillors have to agree to follow a code of conduct to ensure high 
standards in the way they undertake their duties. All councillors receive 
training and ongoing advice on complying with  the code of conduct.  

Council meetings 

All Councillors meet together as the Council.  Meetings of the Council are 
normally open to the public.  It is at Council meetings that councillors decide 
the Council’s overall policies and set the budget each year.  The Council 
appoints a councillor as its Leader, sets up and makes appointments to its 
Service and other Committees and confirms the appointment of the Chief 
Executive (also referred to as the Head of Paid Service).   

The Council has agreed procedures to enable the public to take part in 
Council meetings by asking questions of councillors, presenting petitions 
and also commenting on matters being discussed by the Council before it 
makes decisions.  The procedures are set out in Standing Orders (See Part 
4). 
 

The Mayor 

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be elected by the Council annually from 
amongst the councillors. 

The Mayor is the First Citizen of the Borough and acts as an ambassador 
on behalf of the Borough. As a symbol of the Council and its area, the 
Mayor gives encouragement and shows appreciation for the many groups 
and organisations who also serve the residents of the Borough. The Mayor 
will attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and he or she 
determines appropriate. The Mayor will act in a non-partisan manner and in 
the interests of the whole Council. 

The Leader 

The Council will appoint a Leader annually, who will hold the most significant 
elected Member role within the Council. The Leader will be the political head of the 
Council and the focus for policy direction and community development. The 

Page 12



Updated 25/03/21  Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 

Leader will also be the chief advocate and spokesperson for the whole of the 
Borough.  
 
The Council will also appoint the Deputy Leader at its Annual Meeting, who is able 
to exercise the functions of the Leader when he or she is unavailable. 
 
The Leader will chair meetings of the Policy and Resources Committee. 
 
How decisions are made 
 
The Service Committees 

The Council will establish a number of Service Committees to be responsible for 
most day-to-day decisions. The terms of reference of the Committees are set out 
in Part 3 of this Constitution.  The Service Committees are made up of a Chairman 
and a vice-Chairman and a committee membership determined by the Council.  

Appointments to the Service Committees will be made at the Annual Meeting each 
year.  

 

The Regulatory and other Committees 

The Council has a number of other Committees which deal primarily with the 
regulatory functions which are not the responsibility of any of the Service 
Committees; for example: Planning Committee, Licensing Committee, Audit 
Committee and Standards Committee. 

 

Joint Committees 
 
In conjunction with other authorities and public bodies the Council may establish 
and participate in Joint Committees. These joint arrangements are described in 
Article 10 of this Constitution. 
 
Statutory Scrutiny functions 
 
Statutory requirements mean that the Council must make arrangements for 
scrutiny of certain matters, namely: 

 matters relating to the health of the authority’s population. Recommendations 
may be made to health bodies or other relevant authorities;  

 the power to scrutinise the activities of those responsible for crime and disorder 
strategies. 

 
In addition, the Council will also scrutinise the exercise by relevant authorities of 
flood risk management functions which may affect the local authority’s area.  
 
The Council’s scrutiny functions will be undertaken by the appropriate Service 
Committee. 
 

Page 13



Updated 25/03/21  Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 

Responsibility for the statutory scrutiny functions relating to health will be 
undertaken by Surrey County Council.  

 

The Council’s Staff 

The Council employs people (called ‘officers’ or staff) to give advice, 
implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services.  
Some officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the 
law and uses its resources wisely.  A code of practice governs the 
relationships between officers and councillors. Officers will comply with the 
Staff Code of Conduct set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 
 

The Public’s Rights 

The Public have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council.  
These are set out in Article 3.  Some of these are legal rights, whilst others 
depend on the Council’s own processes.  The local Citizens’ Advice Bureau 
can advise on individuals’ legal rights. 

Where members of the public use specific Council services, they may have 
additional rights.  These are not covered in this Constitution. The Council 
welcomes participation by the public in its work.  For further information on 
your rights as a citizen, please contact the Group Head of Corporate 
Governance. 

 

Definitions 

The headings in this Constitution are inserted for convenience only and 
shall not affect its construction. 

A reference to a particular law is a reference to it as it is in force for the time 
being, taking account of any amendment, extension or re-enactment and 
includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under 
it. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to one gender shall 
include a reference to the other genders. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural 
and in the plural, shall include the singular. 

Page 14



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 1- The Constitution 

 

Part 2 – Articles of the Constitution 

Article 1 – The Constitution 
1.1 Powers of the Council 

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law 
and this Constitution. 

1.2 The Constitution 

This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of Spelthorne 
Borough Council. 

1.3 Purpose of the Constitution 

The Council’s overall aim is to deliver quality, best value for money services that 
matter most to our residents and its approach to achieving this is based on the 
following values: 

 Community – developing strong, thriving, cohesive communities 

 Opportunity - providing equality of opportunity for all; and 

 Self-Reliance – focusing on those most disadvantaged and in need 

 Accountability - taking responsibility for our own actions  

 Tradition - recognising the importance of our heritage, history and 
tradition. 

The Council has tried to embody its values in this Constitution. 

The purpose of the Constitution is to: 

1. enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the Spelthorne 
community and work in partnership with residents, businesses and 
other organisations to make Spelthorne a place where people are fully 
engaged and are both respected and respectful, promoting an 
environment that is healthy, safe, inclusive, prosperous and 
sustainable; 

2. support and encourage the active involvement of the Spelthorne 
community in the decisions which affect them; 

3. help councillors represent their constituents more effectively; 

4. help councillors to carry out their civic duties effectively; 

5. enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively; 

6. create an effective means of holding decision-makers to public account; 

7. ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly 
identifiable to local people and that they explain the reasons for 
decisions; 

8. provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the Spelthorne 
community; and 

Page 15



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 1- The Constitution 

9. ensure that high standards of probity and ethics are evident in all 
aspects of the Council’s decisions and activities. 

1.4 Interpretation and Review of the Constitution 

Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different 
courses of action, the Council will always choose that option which it thinks is 
closest to the purposes stated above. 

The Council will monitor and evaluate the operation of the Constitution as set 
out in Article 15. 

 

Page 16



 
Updated 28/04/16  Article 2 – The Council and its Members 

Article 2 – The Council and its Members 
2.1 Composition and eligibility 

(a) Composition. The Council will comprise 39 members, otherwise 
called councillors.  One or more councillors will be elected by the 
voters of each ward in accordance with a scheme drawn up by 
the Boundary Commission for England and approved by the 
Secretary of State. 

(b) Eligibility. Only registered voters of Spelthorne or those living or 
working here will be eligible to hold the office of councillor. 

2.2 Election and terms of councillors 

The regular election of councillors will be held on the first Thursday in May 
every four years.  The term of office of councillors will start on the fourth day 
after they are elected and will finish on the fourth day after the date of the 
next regular election. 

2.3 Roles and functions of all councillors 

(a) Key roles. All councillors will: 

(i) participate constructively and effectively in the good 
governance of the Borough; 

(ii) contribute actively to the formation, development and 
review of the Council’s policies, priorities, plans, 
strategies, budget and service delivery; 

(iii) ensure the Council in all its activities is aware of and 
takes into account the differing needs and views of all 
sections of the community in Spelthorne; 

(iv) participate actively in supporting the interests of the 
community and improving the quality of life in the 
Borough; 

(v) represent the interests of their ward effectively; 

(vi) raise awareness of the Council and its activities within 
the community and particularly in their wards; 

(vii) participate effectively and actively when a member of 
any committee, sub-committee or working group; 

(viii) participate in appropriate training, development and 
learning opportunities to carry out their role; 

(ix) participate constructively and effectively in civic duties, 
whether they are Council or ward events, as and when 
required or by invitation of the Mayor. 

 

 

Page 17



Updated 28/04/16  Article 2 – The Council and its Members 

(b) Rights and duties 

(i) Councillors will have such rights of access to such 
documents, information, land and buildings of the 
Council as are necessary for the proper discharge of 
their functions and in accordance with the law. 

(ii) Councillors will not make public information which is 
confidential or exempt without the consent of the 
Council, or divulge information given in confidence to 
anyone other than to those councillors and/or members 
of staff entitled to know it. 

(iii) For these purposes, "confidential" and "exempt" 
information are defined in the Access to Information 
Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

2.4 Conduct 

Councillors will at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the 
Protocol on councillor/staff relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 

2.5 Allowances 

Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution. 

 

Page 18



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 3 – The Public and The Council 

Article 3 – The Public and the Council 

3.1 The Public’s rights 

The public have the following rights. Their rights to information and to 
participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information Rules (set 
out in Part 4 of this Constitution): 

(a) Voting and Petitions 

Residents on the electoral roll for Spelthorne have the right to: 

(i) vote at local elections.  

(ii) sign a petition to request a referendum for an elected mayor form of 
Constitution. 

(iii) submit petitions in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme 
set out on the Council’s website. 

(b) Information 

The public have the right to: 

(i) obtain a copy of this Constitution; 

(ii) attend meetings of the Council (and its committees and sub-
committees) except where confidential or exempt information is 
likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is therefore held in private; 

(iii) see reports and background papers, and any records of decisions 
in accordance with the Council’s Access to Information Rules; 
and 

(iv) inspect the Council’s Accounts and make their views known to the 
Council’s external auditor. 

(c) Participation 

The public have the right to  

(i) contact their local councillor about any matters of concern to them; 

(ii) ask a question at a meeting of the Council; 

(iii) report on any meeting, which is not being held in private, by means of any 
medium available to them and share the results of such reporting by any 
communication method at their disposal without causing undue interference 
to the proceedings of the meeting; 

(iv) address the Council before it makes any decision on a recommendation to 
it from a Committee 

(v) sign a petition in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme set out on 
the Council’s website; 

Page 19



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 3 – The Public and The Council 

(vi) speak at meetings of the Planning Committee in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol on public speaking at Planning Committees contained in 
Part 5 of the Constitution; 

(vii) speak at meetings of Licensing Sub-Committees in accordance with the 
rules and procedures adopted by the Council under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005. 

(d) Complaints 

The public have the right to complain to: 

(i) the Council itself under its complaints procedure; 

(ii) the Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints scheme; and 

(iii) the Standards Committee about a breach of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

3.2 Responsibilities of the Public 

The public must not be violent, abusive or threatening to councillors or staff and 
must not willfully harm things owned by the Council. 

 

Page 20



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 4 – The Council 

Article 4 – The Council 
 

4.1 Meanings 

(a) Policy Framework 

The policy framework means the following plans and strategies:- 

 The Council’s Corporate Plan; 

 Spelthorne Community Plan; 

 Spelthorne Safer, Stronger Partnership [SSSP] – Partnership Plan;  

 Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document [DPD] 
February 2009, Allocations DPD December 2009, Spelthorne Borough 
Local Plan – Saved Polices - December 2009. Design of Residential 
Extensions and New Residential Development SPD – April 2011, 
Flooding SPD – July 2012, Housing Size and Type SPD – July 2012, 
Parking Standards - September 2011.Housing Strategy incorporating 
the Housing Investment Programme; 

 Statement of Licensing Policy; 

 Gambling Act 2005: Statement of Principles;  

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy  

 Capital Strategy and 

 Pay Policy Statement. 

(b) Budget 

The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different 
services and projects, proposed contingency funds, the Council Tax base, 
setting the Council Tax, decisions relating to the control of the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, the control of its capital expenditure, and the 
setting of virement limits. 

4.2 Functions of the Council 

Only the Council will exercise the following functions: 

(a) adopting and changing the Constitution  

(b) making proposals and fulfilling any duties to change the Council’s 
governance arrangements, determine whether a referendum is 
required and pass a resolution to make any such change; approving 
the Council’s budget as defined in Article 4.1(b) of the Constitution 
and setting the Council Tax; 

(c) adopting, amending, revoking or replacing any plan or strategy falling 
within the Council’s policy framework;  

(d) subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules (set out in Part 4 of this Constitution), 

Page 21



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 4 – The Council 

making decisions in respect of any Committee decision which is not 
in accordance with the agreed budget and policy framework; 
adopting, revising or replacing the code of conduct for councillors 
and co-opted members;  

(e) election of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor; 

(f) appointment and removal of the Leader of the Council; 

(g) appointment and dissolution of committees, approval and/or 
amendment of their terms of reference and size 

(h) determining allocation of seats on the Council’s committees and 
making appointments to them (a request by a Group Leader to 
amend the political membership of a committee may be made to the 
Chief Executive under Part 3(d)); 

(i) appointment of representatives to outside bodies  

(j) making all necessary arrangements for the discharge of functions 
through joint arrangements, including the establishment of joint 
committees, area committees or delegation to another local 
authority; 

(k) determining matters relating to the failure of a councillor to attend 
meetings for a period of six months; 

(l) approval, amendment, revocation or replacement of the Members’ 
Allowances scheme set out at Part 6 of the Constitution and to 
determine the levels of all allowances payable to councillors; 

(m) those relating to local government pensions; 

(n) determination of those matters in relation to elections and electoral 
registration which it is required to do by legislation; 

(o) changing the name of the Council area or its wards; 

(p) conferring the title of honorary alderman or honorary freeman; 

(q) appointment and dismissal of the Chief Executive 

(r) designating members of staff as the Head of Paid Service, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance (Section 151) Officer; 

(s) appointment of proper officers for particular purposes; 

(t) making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting byelaws 

(u)  promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal 
Bills;  

(v) determining all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to 
Council. 

4.3 Council meetings 

There are three types of Council meeting: 

(a) the annual meeting (at which the Mayor is elected); 

(b) ordinary meetings (on dates agreed annually); and 

Page 22



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 4 – The Council 

(c) extraordinary meetings (to deal with urgent or special business). 

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Standing Orders (set 
out in Part 4(a) of this Constitution). 

4.4 Responsibility for functions 

The Council will maintain the information in Part 3 of this Constitution setting out 
the responsibilities for the Council’s functions.  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 5 – The Mayor 

Article 5 – The Mayor 
5.1 Election of Mayor 

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be elected by the Council annually from 
amongst the councillors.   

5.2 Role and function of the Mayor 

1. The Mayor will have the following responsibilities 

a. to uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution, and 
to interpret the Constitution when necessary; 

b. to preside over meetings of the Council so that its business 
can be carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of 
councillors and the interests of the community; 

c. to ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate 
of matters of concern to the local community and the place at 
which all members are able to hold decision makers to 
account; 

d. to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities; 

e. to be the conscience of the Council; 

f. to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council 
and he/she determines appropriate; 

g. to support other councillors to enable them to carry out their 
civic duties effectively. 

2. In the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor will assume the 
responsibilities of the Mayor. 

3. The Mayor will not be a member of any committee appointed by 
the Council. 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 6 – The Leader 

Article 6 – The Leader of the Council 
 

6.1 Role 

 

The Council will appoint a Leader annually. He/she will be the political head of the 
Council and the focus for policy direction and community development. The Leader 
will also be the chief advocate and spokesperson for the whole of the Borough and 
will chair the Council’s Policy & Resources Committee.  

If the Council does not appoint a Leader, the Leader of the largest political group 
becomes the Leader. Should a vacancy arise for the position of Leader, the Head 
of Paid Service will convene a meeting of Council at the earliest opportunity so that 
a new Leader may be appointed.  

The Council will also appoint at its Annual Meeting the Deputy Leader(s), who 
is/are able to exercise the functions of the Leader when he or she is unavailable, or 
where in the opinion of the Head of Paid Service, the Leader is incapacitated for 
such a period of time that the efficient operation of the Council would be 
significantly impaired.  

Once appointed, the Leader and Deputy Leader(s) will hold office until the next 
Annual Meeting unless he or she:-  

(a) resigns from office; 
(b) is no longer a member of the Council; 
(c) is removed from office by resolution of the Council  

 

 
 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Updated 25 March 2021  Article 7 – Regulatory and other Committees 

Article 7 – Service, Regulatory and other 
Committees 
7.1 Service Committees 

The Council will appoint the following service committees to discharge 
those functions described in Part 3 of the Constitution: 

 

 Corporate Policy and Resources Committee 

 Environment and Sustainability Committee 

 Economic Development Committee 

 Community Wellbeing and Housing Committee 

 Neighbourhood Services Committee 

 

7.2 Regulatory Committees 

The Council will appoint the following committees to discharge its quasi 
judicial and regulatory functions described in Part 3 of the Constitution:- 

 Planning Committee 

 Licensing Committee/Licensing Sub-Committees 

 Audit Committee 

   

7.3 Other Committees 

(i) The Council will appoint the following committees to discharge those 
functions described in Part 3 of the Constitution: 

 Standards Committee 

 Administration Committee 

 

(ii) The Council may appoint other committees from time to time to 
discharge specific functions of the Council or to advise it on specific 
issues. 

 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 8 – The Standards  Committee 

Article 8 – The Standards Committee 
8.1 Appointment 

The Council will appoint a Standards Committee at its Annual Meeting. 

8.2 Membership 

The Standards Committee will be composed of: 

 nine councillors who shall be representative of all political groups 
as far as practical and in accordance with political proportionality, 
and shall not include the Mayor; and 

 two persons who are not a councillor or a member of staff (an 
Independent Member); 

The Independent Members are advisory and will not be entitled to vote at 
meetings. 

8.3 Chairing the Committee 

The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the committee shall both be 
Independent Members. 

8.4 Role and Functions 

The Standards Committee will have the following roles and functions: 

(a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
councillors and any co-opted members (Members); 

(b) the establishment of a Hearings Panel (comprising three 
councillors drawn from the membership of the Standards 
Committee and chaired by an independent member) to assess 
and determine complaints against Members under the Code of 
Conduct; 

(c) to support the Monitoring Officer in exercising his/her delegated 
authority, in consultation with the Chairman of the Standards 
Committee, to select councillors to serve on the Hearings Panels 
above on a case by case basis; 

(d) assisting the Members to observe the Members’ Code of 
Conduct; 

(e) assisting the councillors in carrying out their civic duties 
effectively through promoting, managing and agreeing a 
programme of member development; 

(f) advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct; 

(g) monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

(h) advising on training Members on matters relating to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct; 

Page 31



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 8 – The Standards Committee 

(i) granting dispensations to Members from the requirements 
relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

(j) keeping an overview of and advising the Council on its Planning 
Code; 

(k) keeping an overview of and advising the Council on its Councillor 
and Staff Protocol; 

(l) keeping an overview on the operation of, and advising the Council on, 
any changes to its Constitution; 

(m) To appoint such independent person(s) as necessary pursuant to 
Section 28 Localism Act 2011;  

(n) keeping an overview on the operation of, and advising the Council on, 
the Staff Code of Conduct; and, 

(o) any other responsibilities which may be delegated to it by the Council. 

 

Page 32



Updated  25 March 2021   Article 9 - Joint Arrangements 

Article 9 - Joint Arrangements 
9.1 Arrangements to promote well being 

In order to promote the economic, social or environmental well-being of 
Spelthorne, the Council may: 

(a) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body; 

(b) co-operate with, facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any 
person or body; and 

(c) exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that 
person or body. 

9.2 Joint arrangements 

(a) The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or 
more local authorities to exercise functions. Such 
arrangements may involve the appointment of a joint 
committee with these other local authorities. 

9.3 Appointments to a Joint Committee 

(a) The Council may appoint members to a joint committee and 
those members need not reflect the political composition of 
the Council as a whole where such joint committee was 
established under the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

(b) Details of any joint arrangements which have been made, 
including any delegations to joint committees, are in the 
Council’s scheme of delegations in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

9.4 Access to information 

The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution apply 
(Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 refers). 

9.5 Delegation to and from other local authorities 

(a) The Council may delegate functions to another local authority  

(b) The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from 
another local authority shall be reserved to the Council. 

9.6 Contracting out 

Provided there is no delegation of the Council’s discretionary decision 
making, the Council may contract out to another body or organisation, 
functions:- 

 which may be exercised by a staff member and which are subject 
to an order under section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting 
Out Act 1994; or 

 under contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the 
Council’s agent under usual contracting principles. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 10– The Officers 

Article 10 – Officers 
10.1 Management Structure 

(a) General 

The Council may engage such staff as it considers necessary to 
carry out its functions. 

(b) Chief Officers 

The Council will engage persons for the following posts, who will be 
designated chief officers: 

Post Functions and areas of responsibility 

Chief Executive 
(and Head of Paid 
Service) 

Overall corporate management and operational 
responsibility (including overall management 
responsibility for all officers) 

Provision of professional advice to all parties in the 
decision making process. 

Together with the Monitoring Officer, responsibility 
for a system of record keeping for all the Council’s 
decisions. 

Representing the Council on partnership and 
external bodies (as required by statute or the 
Council) governance support, public relations. 

Deputy Chief 
Executives (2)   

Responsibility for the service areas of the Council 
identified in the Council’s management structure.    

Chief Finance 
Officer  

Responsibility for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs. 

Responsible for reporting to the Council if councillors 
or staff make or are about to make a decision 
involving unlawful expenditure, loss or deficiency, or 
if proposed expenditure is likely to exceed available 
resources. 

Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 

Standards, lawfulness, the Council’s Constitution, 
advice and assistance.   

(c) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer  

The Council will designate the following posts as shown: 

Post Designation 

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service 

Group Head of Corporate Governance Monitoring Officer 

Deputy Chief Executive (Terry Collier) Chief Finance Officer 

Page 35



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 10 – The Officers 

Such posts will have the functions described in Article 12.2–12.4 below 

(d) Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy Chief Finance Officer 

A Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy Chief Finance Officer will be 
appointed from the Council’s staff to perform the functions of the Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer respectively, where the Monitoring Officer or 
Chief Finance Officer, as appropriate, is unable to act. 
 

10.2 Functions of the Head of Paid Service  

The Head of Paid Service will:- 

(a) Discharge of functions by the Council. The Head of Paid 
Service is responsible for the manner in which the discharge 
of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and 
grade of officers required for the discharge of functions and 
the organisation of officers; 

(b) Restrictions on functions.  The Head of Paid Service may 
not be the Monitoring Officer but may hold the post of chief 
finance officer if a qualified accountant; 

10.3  Functions of the Monitoring Officer 

The Monitoring Officer will:- 

(a) maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will 
ensure that it is widely available for consultation by 
councillors, staff and the public; 

(b) after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and Chief 
Finance Officer, report to the Council if he or she considers 
that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness or if any decision or omission has given rise to 
maladministration.  Such a report will have the effect of 
stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the 
report has been considered; 

(c) contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high 
standards of conduct through provision of support to the 
Standards Committee 

(d) conduct investigations into complaints and matters arising 
under the Members’ Code of Conduct ; 

(e) provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take 
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity 
and budget and policy framework issues to all councillors. 

(f) ensure that Committee decisions, together with the reasons 
for those decisions and relevant officer reports and 
background papers are made publicly available as soon as 
possible. 

Page 36



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 10 – The Officers 

(g) The Monitoring Officer cannot be the Chief Finance Officer or 
the Head of Paid Service. 

10.4   Functions of the Chief Finance Officer 

The Chief Finance Officer will:- 

(a) after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the 
Monitoring Officer, report to the Council and the Council’s 
external auditor if he or she considers that any proposal, 
decision or course of action will involve incurring unlawful 
expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss or 
deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of 
account unlawfully; 

(b) have responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs 
of the Council; 

(c) contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in 
particular through the provision of professional financial 
advice; 

(d) provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take 
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity 
and budget and policy framework issues to all councillors and 
will support and advise councillors and officers in their 
respective roles; 

(e) provide financial information to the media, members of the 
public and the community. 

 

10.5  Duty to provide sufficient resources to the Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Finance Officer 

The Council will provide the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer with 
such officers, accommodation and other resources as are in the opinion of 
those officers sufficient to allow their duties to be performed. 

10.6  Conduct 

Officers will comply with the Staff Code of Conduct and the Protocol on 
Councillor-Staff Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 

10.7  Employment 

The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will comply with the 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 11 – Decision Making  

Article 11 – Decision-Making 
11.1 Responsibility for decision-making 

The Council will issue and keep up to date a record of what part of the 
Council or individual has responsibility for particular types of decisions or 
decisions relating to particular areas or functions. This record is set out in 
Part 3 of this Constitution. 

11.2 Principles of decision-making 

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following 
principles: 

(a) proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the 
desired outcome); 

(b) due consultation and the taking of professional advice from 
staff; 

(c) respect for human rights (see below for further details); 

(d) a presumption in favour of openness; 

(e) clarity of aims and desired outcomes; and reasonableness 

11.3 And in accordance with the Council’s objectives for establishing a 
Committee system: 

(a) Accountability – responsibilities and accountability should be clear 
within the Council and to residents 

(b) Credibility – governance should assist good decision-making 
which involves proper and early scrutiny 

(c) Transparency – the decision-making process should be open and 
transparent to members and the public 

(d) Collaboration – decision-making should be collaborative across 
parties and less combative 

(e) Timeliness – decision-making should be both quick and effective 
and where necessary allow for urgent decision-making. 

11.4 Types of decision 

(a) Decisions reserved to Council. 

Decisions relating to the functions listed in Article 4.2 will be 
made by the Council and not delegated. 

(b) Key Decisions 

A key decision is a decision which, in the view of the Head of 
Paid Service, is likely:  

(i) to result in significant expenditure or savings of £250,000 or 
more; and/or  

Page 39



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 11 – Decision Making  

(ii)  to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living 
or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the 
area of the local authority. 

NOTE - Whilst it is recognised that ‘key decision’ is a term required under 
executive arrangements, the term has been retained as it continues to provide a 
useful definition under committee system governance arrangements.  

 

11.5 Decision-making by the Council 

Subject to Article 13.6, the Council meeting will follow the Council Standing 
Orders set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter. 

11.6 Decision-making by Committees and Sub-Committees 
established by the Council 

Subject to Article 13.6, Council Committees and Sub-Committees will follow 
those parts of the Council Standing Orders set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution as apply to them. 

11.7 Decision-making by Council bodies acting as tribunals 

The Council, a councillor or a member of staff, acting as a tribunal or in a 
quasi-judicial manner or determining/considering (other than for the 
purposes of giving advice) the civil rights and obligations or the criminal 
responsibility of any person, will follow a proper procedure which accords 
with the requirements of natural justice and the right to a fair trial contained 
in Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights and the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 

   
 

Page 40



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 12 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 

Article 12 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 
12.1 Financial management 

The management of the Council’s financial affairs will be conducted in 
accordance with the financial regulations set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution. 

12.2 Contracts 

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contract Standing 
Orders set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

12.3 Legal proceedings 

The Group Head of Corporate Governance is authorised to institute, defend 
or participate in any legal proceedings in any case where such action is 
necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council or in any case where the 
Group Head of Corporate Governance considers that such action is 
necessary to protect the Council’s interests. 

12.4 Authentication of documents 

Where any document is necessary for any legal procedure or proceedings 
on behalf of the Council, it will be signed by the Chief Executive, Group 
Head of Corporate Governance  or other person authorised by him/her, 
unless any enactment otherwise authorises or requires, or the Council has 
given requisite authority to some other person. 

Any contract with a value exceeding £100,000 entered into on behalf of the 
Council shall be made in writing and made under the Common Seal of the 
Council attested by at least one member of staff. 

12.5 Common Seal of the Council 

The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the custody 
of the Group Head of Corporate Governance.  A decision of the Council, or 
of any part of it, will be sufficient authority for sealing any document 
necessary to give effect to the decision. The Common Seal will be affixed to 
those documents which in the opinion of the Group Head of Corporate 
Governance should be sealed. The affixing of the Common Seal will be 
attested by the Group Head of Corporate Governance, Chief Finance 
Officer or Chief Executive or some other person authorised by him/her or 
the Council. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Updated 25 March 2021  Article 13 – Review and Revision of the Constitution 

Article 13 – Review and Revision of the Constitution 

13.1 Duty to monitor and review the constitution 

The Monitoring Officer and the Standards Committee will monitor and 
review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that the aims and 
principles of the Constitution are given full effect. 

13.2 Changes to the Constitution 

(a) Subject to (b) below, changes to the constitution will only be 
approved by Council after considering a report on the proposal 
by the Monitoring Officer and, as appropriate, any advice from 
the Standards Committee. 

(b) The Monitoring Officer may make minor changes to the 
constitution to reflect new legislation or changes to officer titles 
under a restructure providing that when he does so, information 
is subsequently provided to the Council to explain the effect of 
those changes. 

(c) Any councillor or any Committee may submit proposals for 
changes to this Constitution to the Council for consideration. 

(d) The Council must take reasonable steps to consult with local 
electors and other interested persons in the area when drawing 
up proposals to change its governance arrangements 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated 25 March 2021  Article 14 – Suspension, Interpretation and 
Publication of the Constitution 

Article 14 – Suspension, Interpretation and 
Publication of the Constitution 
14.1 Suspension of the Constitution 

(a) Limit to suspension. The Articles of this Constitution may not be 
suspended. The rules specified below may be suspended by a 
meeting of the Council to the extent permitted within those rules 
and the law. 

(b) Procedure to suspend. A motion to suspend any rules will not be 
moved without notice, unless at least one half of the whole number 
of councillors are present. The extent and duration of suspension 
will be proportionate to the result to be achieved, taking account of 
the purposes of the Constitution set out in Article 1. 

(c) Rules capable of suspension. The following rules may be 
suspended in accordance with Article 16.1: 

 Standing Orders for Council 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Standing Orders 

14.2 Interpretation 

The ruling of the Mayor as to the construction or application of this 
Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council shall not be challenged 
at any meeting of the Council.  Such interpretation will have regard to the 
purposes of this Constitution contained in Article 1. 

14.3 Publication 

The Group Head of Corporate Governance will ensure that a copy of the 
Constitution is available in the Members’ Room, available for inspection 
at the Council offices and on the Council’s website.   

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Part 3 section (a) 

 

 
Updated 25 March 2021  Introduction to the Scheme of Delegations 

 

INTRODUCTION TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS 
 

Introduction 

1. Under section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council may 
delegate its functions to a committee of the Council or to a member of 
staff, other than those matters reserved to the full Council meeting. 

 
2. This document sets out the functions which have been delegated to staff 

in consultation with relevant Chair and Vice-Chair as set out in Part 3 (c). 
The references to staff are to the posts as currently titled but these will 
equally apply to the holder of an equivalent post in the future.  

 
3. This document deals only with the standard delegations made by the 

Council and Committees and does not cover temporary delegations for a 
particular purpose.  

 
General Conditions and Limitations 

4. The functions, powers and duties in this scheme are delegated to staff as 
set out.  These include the power to do anything which is calculated to 
facilitate, or is conductive to, the discharge of these functions.  

 
5. All staff exercising these delegations are to act in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations 
and any other protocols or other arrangements approved in pursuance to 
them.  

 
6. The following are not delegated to any member of staff: 
 

a. Any matter reserved to Council, or any Committee or a member 
body having decision making powers.; 

b. Any function which by law cannot be delegated to a member of 
staff; and 

c. The adoption of new policy or significant variation to existing 
policies and any matter which is contrary to the policy framework 
and budget of the Council. 

 
7. The Council, relevant committee or other member body with decision 

making powers may at any time resume responsibility for the function 
and may therefore exercise the function despite the delegation.  

 
8. A member of staff may decide not to exercise any function in relation to a 

particular matter and invite the Council, or relevant Committee or  sub-
Committee having decision making powers, as appropriate, to do so 
instead. It is open to a member of staff to consult with appropriate 
councillors on the exercise of delegated powers or in deciding whether or 
not to exercise any delegated powers where the matter is likely to be 
controversial or contentious.  

 

Page 47



 
Part 3 section (a) 

 

 
Updated 25 March 2021  Introduction to the Scheme of Delegations 

 

9. A member of staff with line management responsibility for the member of 
staff named in the delegation may exercise the power instead of the 
member of staff so designated and may direct or negate any course of 
action proposed. In absence of a Deputy Chief Executive with line 
management responsibility, the Chief Executive may exercise that 
power.  

 
10. A decision delegated to a member of staff by Council or Committee can 

be taken by a staff member with line management responsibility for that 
staff member in his/her absence. 

 

11. A member of staff to whom a power, duty or function is delegated may 
nominate or authorise another member of staff to exercise that power, 
duty or function, provided that such delegation is recorded in writing.  

 
12. A decision delegated to a member of staff in consultation with the Chair 

and Vice-Chair of a Committee may be taken in consultation with either 
the Chair or Vice-Chair where only one is available.  

13. With respect to any reference to a delegation being exercised following 
consultation with any councillor, the decision is vested with the member 
of staff so delegated who shall be responsible and accountable for the 
decision. The member of staff so delegated is required to bring 
independent judgement to bear on the decision and the decision shall be 
his/hers alone and not the members being consulted. If those councillors 
disagree with the member of staff, the matter should be referred to the 
body or person from whom the delegation arose for decision.  

 
14. In exercising any delegated powers, officers must ensure that their 

decisions are consistent with Council policy, within approved spending 
limits and in the best interests of residents and the Council as a whole. 
Relevant councillors should also be informed/consulted as appropriate 
depending on the nature and sensitivity of the decision.  

 
15. Each officer is responsible for ensuring that decisions which they take 

are adequately recorded, and that the record of that decision is available 
to other Officers, to councillors and to the public as required by statute 
and this Constitution, particularly if the decision relates to a change in 
policy or practice, or a financial commitment.  

 
16. Every officer is responsible for ensuring that any decision which he/she 

takes is implemented in accordance with that decision.  
 

17. Every officer is accountable for each decision which he/she takes and 
may be called to provide an explanation of his/her reasons for the 
decision and account for its implementation to other officer, councillors 
and statutory regulators. 

 
 

Page 48



 
Part 3 section (a) 

 

 
Updated 25 March 2021  Introduction to the Scheme of Delegations 

 

18. The Group Head of Corporate Governance shall have the power to 
amend delegations to reflect re-organisations, changes in job titles and 
vacancies, where the changes result in redistributing existing delegations 
and not the creation of new ones.  

 
19. The Group Head of Corporate Governance shall have the power to 

amend delegations to reflect changes in legislation, or references to 
legislation where such changes do not alter the nature of the existing 
delegation. 

 
Interpretation  

 
20. All enquiries about this scheme of delegations should be made to the 

Group Head of Corporate Governance and all matters of interpretation 
will also be determined by the Group Head of Corporate Governance.  
 

21. Any reference to a statute or statutory instrument shall be deemed to 
include and be construed as if it contained a reference to any 
subsequent statute or statutory instrument for the time being replacing, 
amending or extending the same or containing related provisions. 

 
22. The expressions ‘officer’, ‘staff’ or ‘employee’ includes any person 

employed by the Council irrespective of the particular National Scheme 
of Conditions of Service under which they are employed. 

 
23. The expression Chief Officer shall mean the Chief Executive, the 

relevant Deputy Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 
Finance Officer. 
 

24. The expression Head of Service shall mean the following job titles: 

 Group Head of Corporate Governance 

 Group Head Commissioning and Transformation 

 Group Head Community Wellbeing 

 Deputy Group Head Customer Services 

 Group Head Neighbourhood Services 

 Group Head Regeneration and Growth 

 Senior Environmental Health Manager 

 Planning Development Manager 

 Strategic Planning Manager 
 

 
Urgent Decisions  

25. In order to enable an urgent decision to be made, the Chief Executive 
has delegated power to take any decision which is so urgent that it 
cannot wait until the next scheduled meeting of the Council or relevant 
Committee and where the decision is not in contravention of established 
policies.  
 

Page 49



 
Part 3 section (a) 

 

 
Updated 25 March 2021  Introduction to the Scheme of Delegations 

 

26. In following this procedure, the Chief Executive is required to consult with 
the relevant Committee Chair and Vice-Chair  

27. The use of such urgent action must be reported to the next relevant 
Committee meeting. 
 

General Delegations to Chief Officers 

28. Subject to all specific delegations contained in this scheme, Chief 
Officers may take action on behalf of the Council where the proposed 
action conforms to any policy, strategy or development plan approved by 
the Council or one of its committees and there is a budget provision. 

 
29. To delegate further, in writing, all or any of their delegated functions to 

other members of staff to exercise in their own name. 
 
30. To advise on policy development and formulation. 

 
Emergencies 

31. The Chief Executive and all Chief Officers have power to take all 
necessary actions including incurring expenditure with regards to any 
emergency involving serious danger to life, property and public welfare. 
Any action taken under this provision shall be reported as soon as 
practicable to the Council or relevant Committee as appropriate. If 
necessary and where legally possible Contract Standing Orders and 
Financial Regulations shall be suspended during such emergencies. All 
expenditure incurred should be reported to the Chief Finance Officer who 
will report such expenditure to the Council or relevant Committee where 
necessary under Financial Regulations.  

Page 50



Part 3 section (b) 

Updated 25 March 2021 Responsibility for Functions 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

All Committees will have the following functions in respect of their respective areas: 

 To develop the Council’s policy, strategy and budget proposals 

 To work at meeting the Council’s corporate objectives, as set out in the Corporate 
Plan. 

 To encourage performance improvement in relevant services, consistent with 
Value for Money principles and within the policy and budgetary framework agreed 
by the Council.  This includes responding appropriately to statutory reports on 
external inspections and service reviews. 

 To develop a full understanding of the functions and services within the 
Committee’s remit 

 To facilitate and encourage public participation in the Council's activities by 
engaging key stakeholders in the Council's processes for decision making. 

 To oversee the publication of consultation papers on key issues and ensure that 
there is appropriate public consultation. 

 To consider budget priorities and actions on the delivery of Council services within 
the overall policy and budgetary framework agreed by the Council. 

 To consult with local Ward councillors about policy developments or service 
initiatives which have a specific relevance to the Committee. 

 To support positive relationships and practices through co-operative working with 
staff. 

 To commission studies or the collection of information relating to policy issues 
(Policy and Resources Committee) or service delivery (Service Committees).  

 

  

Page 51



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

CORPORATE POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

Membership  

15 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Formulation of the Council’s annual budget, including the capital and revenue 
budgets, prudential controls and council tax, and to recommend to Council  

 Overseeing and managing the Council’s financial strategies plans, and regulations  
 Formulating the Council’s community and corporate plans and to recommend to 

Council 
 Formulating and co-ordinating the Council’s Policy Framework and to recommend 

to Council accordingly  
 Revenues and benefits  
 Human Resources Policy  
 Performance management, Project management & service delivery 

options/transformation 
 Property asset management including investment, purchases and disposals, and 

compulsory purchases 
 Matters that cross the remits of two or more ‘service’ committees and/or to resolve 

conflict 
 To monitor and review relevant Council policies and strategies. 

 To review and scrutinise service delivery and in particular ensuring that best value 
in service delivery is being obtained for the community. 

 To undertake scrutiny and monitor the performance of external bodies who deliver 
services to the community 

Assets Programme Board Sub-Committee 

To be added 

  

Page 52



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Membership  

15 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Planning policy  
 The Local Plan  
 Waste strategy & management 
 Recycling  
 Biodiversity 
 Climate change – including air quality, carbon management, mitigation and 

adaptation measures 
 Public Health 
 Parks, open spaces and allotments  
 Emergency planning  
 Review and scrutiny of the exercise by the relevant authorities of the flood risk 

management functions which may affect the Council’s area. (dependant on O&S 
inclusion) 

 To monitor and review relevant Council policies and strategies and recommend 
changes or new policies to the Policy and Resources Committee. 

 To review and scrutinise service delivery and in particular ensuring that best value 
in service delivery is being obtained for the community. 

 To undertake scrutiny and monitor the performance of external bodies who deliver 
services to the community 

 To review and scrutinise budget proposals and make recommendations to the 
Policy and Resources Committee. 

  

Page 53



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

Membership  

9 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Economic development, business partnerships and town centre viability & 
regeneration  

 Heathrow liaison + 
 Business transformation, support and inward investment 
 Tourism 
 Transport 
 To monitor and review relevant Council policies and strategies and recommend 

changes or new policies to the Policy and Resources Committee. 

 To review and scrutinise service delivery and in particular ensuring that best value 
in service delivery is being obtained for the community. 

 To undertake scrutiny and monitor the performance of external bodies who deliver 
services to the community 

 To review and scrutinise budget proposals and make recommendations to the 

Policy and Resources Committee. 

+ The scrutiny of Heathrow to be carried out jointly with Environment & Sustainability 
Committee 

 

  

Page 54



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

COMMUNITY WELLBEING & HOUSING COMMITTEE 

Membership  

13 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Leisure, libraries, arts, sports and culture  
 Community development and engagement 
 Voluntary sector strategy and liaison 
 Housing policy & strategy 
 Housing options, advice and benefits 
 Affordable housing and homelessness 
 Private sector and social housing enforcement 
 Home Improvement Agency 
 Grants to outside bodies 
 Education and young people 

 Services for older people  

 Day centres 

 Supported living independently – including meals on wheels 

 Family support 

 Disability issues and grants 

 To monitor and review relevant Council policies and strategies and recommend 
changes or new policies to the Policy and Resources Committee. 

 To review and scrutinise service delivery and in particular ensuring that best value 
in service delivery is being obtained for the community. 

 To undertake scrutiny and monitor the performance of external bodies who deliver 
services to the community 

 To review and scrutinise budget proposals and make recommendations to the 
Policy and Resources Committee. 

  

Page 55



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Membership  

9 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Street cleansing services 

 Street Scene 

 Parking Services 

 Customer Services and consultation 

 Building Control 

 Cemeteries 
 Community safety and crime & disorder (dependant on O&S inclusion) 

 Civil Enforcement (JET) 

 Environmental protection – including food safety & enforcement 
 Health & Safety enforcement 
 Consumer protection, licensing, trading standards and environmental health matters  
 Planning enforcement 
 To monitor and review relevant Council policies and strategies and recommend 

changes or new policies to the Policy and Resources Committee. 

 To review and scrutinise service delivery and in particular ensuring that best value 
in service delivery is being obtained for the community. 

 To undertake scrutiny and monitor the performance of external bodies who deliver 
services to the community 

 To review and scrutinise budget proposals and make recommendations to the 
Policy and Resources Committee. 

  

Page 56



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Membership 

9 members reflecting political balance.  

Functions  

This committee has responsibility for the following functions of the Council:  

 Corporate Services including Communications, Legal Services, ICT, Democratic 
Services and Electoral Services 

 Human Resources, personnel, pensions and administrative arrangements 

  

Page 57



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER’S PANEL 

The Panel is a joint committee, made up of both appointed and co-opted members. All 
county, district and borough councillors are eligible to be Panel members. 
 
In Surrey, there are 12 appointed members equating to the 12 councils.  One councillor 
from Spelthorne Borough Council (appointed annually by Council) is a member of the 
Panel.  In addition, there must be at least 2 co-opted members on the Panel (co-opted by 
the Panel itself, not the constituent councils) but the size of the Panel must not exceed 20 
members in total.  Surrey County Council is the lead authority administering the work of 
the Panel.   
 

The Panel is established as an Overview and Scrutiny body and therefore has the legal 
powers to: 

 Require any papers in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s (PCC) possession 
(except those that are operationally sensitive). 

 Require the PCC (and his staff) to attend the Panel to answer questions. 

 Request the Chief Constable attends to answer questions where the PCC has been 
required to appear before the Panel. 

 Make reports and recommendations on any action or decision of the Commissioner.  

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 details the functions that the Panel 
exercises as follows: 

 Review the draft police and crime plan, or draft variation, given to the Panel by the 
PCC and make a report or recommendations on the draft plan or variation to the 
PCC. 

 Review the PCC’s annual report and make a report or recommendations on the 
report to the PCC. 

 Review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken by the PCC in connection 
with the discharge of the PCC’s functions.  

 Publish any report and recommendations made to the PCC. 

 Review certain senior appointments made by the PCC. 

 Review Chief Constable appointments, with the power to veto the appointment with a 
two-thirds majority. 

 Review and report on the PCC’s proposals to remove a Chief Constable. 

 Review the PCC’s level of precept, with the power to veto the proposed precept with 
a two-thirds majority. 

 Suspend the PCC if he or she is charged with certain criminal offences. 

 Appoint an acting PCC if necessary. 

 Initial handling and informal resolution of complaints about the conduct of the PCC or 
his Deputy. 

 

Page 58



Updated 25 March 2021   

  

REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Membership 

 7 councillors reflecting political balance and two independent members 

 

Functions 

To provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework 
and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial 
and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk 
and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process: 

 To approve (but not direct) the internal audit’s strategy plan and performance. 

 To review summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising and to seek 
assurance that action has been taken where necessary. 

 To consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies. 

 To consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements, the 
control environment and associated anti fraud, bribery and anti corruption 
arrangements.   

 Seek assurances that action is being taken on risk related issues identified by 
auditors and inspectors. 

 To be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the Annual 
Governance Statement, properly reflect the risk environment and to take actions 
required to improve it. 

 To ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal audit, 
inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of the audit 
process is actively promoted. 

 To review the financial statements, external auditors’ opinion and reports to 
councillors, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised by 
external audit. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 59



Updated 25 March 2021   

LICENSING COMMITTEE  

Membership 

13 members reflecting political balance 

Functions 

1. Subject to staff delegations, In relation to the Licensing Act 2003: 

a. The determination of an application for a premises licence where relevant 

representations have been made and not withdrawn; 

b. The determination of an application for a club premises certificate where relevant 

representations have been made and not withdrawn; 

c. The determination of an application for a provisional statement where relevant 

representations have been made and not withdrawn; 

d. The determination of an application for variation of a premises licence/club 

premises certificates where relevant representations have been made and not 

withdrawn; 

e. The determination of an application to vary the designated premises supervisor 

following objections from a Responsible Authority; 

f. The determination of an application for the transfer of a premises licence following 

objections from a Responsible Authority; 

g. Consideration of an objection from a Responsible Authority made to an interim 

authority notice; 

h. The decision to give counter notice following objections from a Responsible 

Authority to a temporary event order; 

i. The determination of an application for the grant of a personal licence following 

objections from the Responsible Authority; 

j. The determination of an application for a review of a premises licence. 

 

2. In relation to the Gambling Act 2005: 

a. The determination of an application for a licence where relevant representations 

have been made and not withdrawn; 

b. The determination of an application for a variation of a licence where relevant 

representations have been made and not withdrawn; 

c. The determination of an application for the transfer of a licence where relevant 

representations have been received from the Gambling Commission; 

d. The determination of an application for a provisional statement where relevant 

representations have been received and not withdrawn; 

e. The determination of an application for a review of a licence; 

Page 60



Updated 25 March 2021   

f. The determination of an application for club gaming / club machine permits where 

objections have been made and not withdrawn; 

g. The cancellation of club gaming / club machine permits where relevant 

representations have been received and not withdrawn; 

h. The decision to give a counter notice to a temporary use notice. 

3. In relation to Part II  Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provision) 

Act 1982: 

a. To grant or refuse applications for the grant, renewal or transfer of licences for sex 

establishments; 

b. To grant or refuse applications for variations; 

c. To attach such terms, conditions and restrictions to licences as is seen necessary 

and appropriate; 

d. To revoke licences 

 

4. In relation to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 to revoke, refuse, to grant or renew, hackney carriage and 
private hire drivers and operators licences in circumstances where staff consider it 
appropriate to refer the matter to the Sub-Committee. 

 

5. The passing of a resolution that the schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory Nuisance 
Act 1993 should apply in the authority’s area. 

 
6. And the adoption of all policies relating to taxi and private hire licensing. 

 

 

All members of the Licensing Committee may serve on a Sub-Committee and delegated 
authority is given to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Licensing Committee, to select members to serve on a Sub-Committee on a case-by-case 
basis.  

  

Page 61



Updated 25 March 2021   

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 (15 Members) 

Subject to staff delegations, any applications for planning permission under Part III of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to which any of the following below apply AND 
subject to no decisions being issued within 21 days of the application’s appearance on the 
Publicity Schedule; 

 
1 Where councillor representations are received in writing within the specified “call in” 

period within the approved scheme. 
 

2 Where the Head of Planning and Housing Strategy decides, after consultation with the 
Chairman of the Planning Committee, that an application should be submitted to the 
Planning Committee on planning grounds, or where there is significant public concern 
or where it is very contentious. 

 
3 Where the application is submitted by the Council or by the Council with another 

person (individual or corporate). 

 
4 Where the application is submitted by an officer of the Council (which shall also include 

applications for lawful development under Part VI of the 1990 Act). 

 
5 Where an application is submitted by a councillor (which shall also include applications 

for lawful development under Part VI of the 1990 Act). 

 
6 Approval of over 5 (five) net additional residential units whether by change of use or 

new build (minor application). 

 
7 Approval of over 1,000m2 net additional floor space by new build (major application) or 

over 2500m2 net additional floorspace by change of use 

 
8 Recommendation of no objection for over 1,000m2 net additional floor space or 2500m2 

net additional land area in connection with Surrey County Council minerals and waste 
applications (gravel extraction/restoration). 

 
9 Recommendation of no objection for extension of time limits for Surrey County Council 

minerals and waste applications where the net additional land area is over 2500m2. 

 
10 The confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders (TPO’s) 

 
11 Planning enforcement action which relates to potential loss of a home (Human Rights 

Act) 

 
12 Powers under Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995 (as revised or amended) 

 
13 For the local listing of any building  

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 62



Updated 25 March 2021   

  

Page 63



Updated 25 March 2021   

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

(9 Councillors + 2 Independent Members) 

 

Promoting the maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors and any co-opted 
members of the Council. 

In addition to the broad functions of the Committee set out in Article 8 it is also delegated 
to undertake the following work on behalf of the Council: 

 to keep an overview on the arrangements for dealing with complaints under the 
code of conduct, making alterations and publishing them where it considers 
necessary; 

 to devise such further protocols and procedures as are necessary for the efficient 
management of complaints which have to be considered by a hearings panel; 

 to consult with the Independent Person on any matters which have broad 
implications for the promotion of high standards by the Council; 

 to make recommendations to Council on standing orders for the registration and 
declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other interests; and, 

 to make recommendations to Council on any revisions to the Members’ Code of 
Conduct and the registration of interests. 

 To promote, manage and agree a programme of member development. 

Hearings Panels (comprising three councillors drawn from the membership of the  
Standards Committee  and chaired by an independent member) established under the 
Council’s published arrangements for dealing with complaints may: 

 require the Member to apologise either privately or in public; 

 require the Member to attend training; 

 censure the Member; 

 send a report to Council to censure the Member; 

 require the Monitoring Officer to publish a report in the newspaper or on the 
Council’s website about the councillor’s conduct; 

 withdraw privileges provided by the Council such as computer equipment, internet 
or email access; 

 recommend to the councillor’s group leader that the councillor be removed from a 
Committee, or an outside body (as appropriate);or,  

 a combination of any of the above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



Updated 25 March 2021   

INVESTIGATING AND DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

A panel of five councillors..  All councillors form a panel and are eligible to serve on the 
Committee with membership selected by the group leaders on a proportional basis as and 
when the Committee is required to sit. The members chosen to serve on this Committee 
may not also sit on the Staffing and Appeals Committee in respect of the same matter. 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. To conduct an initial assessment of  allegations against the Chief Executive , Chief 
Finance Officer or Monitoring Officer (together known as Statutory Officers), or 
other issues under investigation. 

 

2. To consider whether it is appropriate to suspend a Statutory Officer if an allegation 
is such that if proven it would amount to gross misconduct or if the continuing 
presence at work of the Statutory Officer might compromise the investigation or 
impair the efficient exercise of the council’s functions.  

 
3. The Chairman of the IDC may suspend the Statutory Officer immediately in an 

emergency if an exceptional situation arises whereby allegations of misconduct by 
the Statutory Officer are such that his / her remaining presence at work poses a 
serious risk to the health and safety of others or the resources, information or 
reputation of the authority.  

 
4. To agree or authorise any protocols which are necessary to manage the 

suspension of the Statutory Officer and the investigation. 
 

5. To review the suspension of the Statutory Officer after a period of two months has 
elapsed. 

 

6. To decide whether to appoint an Independent Investigator to undertake a more 
detailed investigation of an allegation against the Statutory Officer or other issues 
under investigation. 

 
7. To appoint an Independent Investigator selected from the list maintained by the 

National Joint Secretaries, providing the necessary facilities, paying the 
remuneration and providing all available information about the allegations.  

 
8. To consider the report of the Independent Investigator, and also give the Statutory 

Officer the opportunity to state his / her case and to question witnesses, where 
relevant, before making a decision.  

 
  

Page 65



Updated 25 March 2021   

INDEPENDENT PANEL 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
A Panel shall comprise of independent persons (at least two in number) who have been 
appointed by the Council, or by another Council, for the purposes of the council members’ 
conduct regime under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.  
 
Invitations for membership of the Panel shall be issued in accordance with the following 
priority order, as and when the Panel is required to sit:  
 
(a) an independent person who has been appointed by the Council and who is a local 
government elector in the authority’s area  
 
(b) any other independent person who has been appointed by the Council and  
 
(c) an independent person who has been appointed by another council or councils  

 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
1. In a case where the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (IDC) is proposing 

dismissal of a Statutory Officer: 
 

 to receive any oral representations from the Statutory Officer 

 to invite any response on behalf of the IDC to the points made 

 to review the decision and prepare a report for Council offering any advice, views or 
recommendations it may have to the council on the proposal for dismissal 

 
Appropriate training should be provided for Independent Panel members.  
 
Members of an Independent Panel may claim out of pocket expenses in relation to their 
work on the Panel. 

 

Page 66



Updated 25 March 2021   

  

 

  

Page 67



Updated 25 March 2021   

  

Page 68



Updated 25 March 2021   

 

2.  

 

Page 69



Part 3 section (b) 

Updated 25 March 2021 Responsibility for Functions 

 

Page 70



Part 3 section (c) 

Updated 25 March 2021   

DELEGATED RESPONSIBILITIES IN CONSULTATION WITH THE 
CHAIRS AND VICE-CHAIRS OF COMMITTEES 

 

FUNCTION OFFICER IN CONSULTATION WITH 
THE CABINET MEMBER/LEADER 

PH1 To approve freehold or leasehold 
disposals or acquisitions of land or 
interests in land not exceeding an 
estimated value of £100,000 per 
transaction. 

Chief Finance Officer in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice-Chair of P&R  

PH2 To authorise the transfer of expenditure 
from one financial year to another. 

Chief Executive, after consultation 
with the Chief Finance Officer and the 
Chair and Vice-Chair of P&R 

PH3 To approve grants not exceeding £3000 
from the Good Causes Fund. 

Chief Finance Officer in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice-Chair of 
Community, Wellbeing and Housing 
Committee and the Ward Councillors. 

PH4 The allocation of names of new streets. The relevant Deputy Chief Executive, 
in consultation with Chair and Vice-
Chair of Neighbourhood Services 
Committee.  

PH5 To respond to the consultations from the 
Local Government Association, DCLG 
and other Departments or other bodies 
which are other than routine or technical 
consultations. 

Chief Executive or the relevant Deputy 
Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Chair and Vice-Chair of P&R 
Committee.  

PH6 To seek and undertake works for other 
public bodies in accordance with the 
policy established by the Cabinet. 

The relevant Deputy Chief Executive 
and Group Head Neighbourhood 
Services after consultation with the 
Chair and Vice-Chair of 
Neighbourhood Services Committee.  

Page 71



 

 

Updated 25 March 2021   

 

PH7 In regard to termination on grounds of 
redundancy and efficiency under the 
Local Government (Early Termination of 
Employment) (Discretionary 
Compensation) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2006 to award 
compensation in line with the Council’s 
policies  

Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Chair and Vice-Chair of P&R 
Committee. . 

PH8 Authority to make decisions/grant 
discretions  to staff under the Local 
Government Pensions Scheme (Benefits, 
Membership and Contributions) 
Regulations 2007   

 

Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Chair and Vice-Chair of 
Administration Committee. . 

PH9 Under Sections 30-36 of Part 4 of the 
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003, to agree 
to the designation of areas within the 
Borough where the Police could disperse 
groups causing intimidation. 

Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Chair and Vice-Chair of 
Neighbourhood Services Committee.  

PH10 To issue, revoke and renew Street 
trading permits under the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions 
Act 1982 

Senior Environmental Health Manager 
and Building Control in consultation 
with Chair and Vice-Chair of 
neighbourhood Services.  

PH11 To finalise detailed budget proposals to 
cover areas of funding settlement if late 
notification is made by the Government 

Chief Finance Officer in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice-Chair of P&R 
Committee.  

 

Page 72



Part 3 section (f) 

Updated 25 March 2021  Roles of Different Councillors 

Roles of Different Councillors 
 

The Council has recognised that councillors appointed to certain roles have 
additional responsibilities and these are set out below.   
 
Leader of the Council 

 To act as the political head of the Council and the focus for policy 
direction and community development. 

 To chair the Council’s Policy & Resources Committee 

 To lead in the development of the Council’s policy, strategy and budget 
proposals 

 To lead on the implementation of effective service delivery and the 
Council’s approved policies and strategies 

 To act as the Council’s chief advocate and principal spokesperson at 
local, County, regional and national level 

 To ensure good working relationships are established with external 
public and private sector networks which affect the Borough 

 To provide leadership to the Council as a whole  

 To lead in the development of good working relationships between 
political group leaders 

 To lead in ensuring that the Council’s strategies, plans, objectives 
 and targets are monitored, implemented and achieved. 

 To ensure that the Council is open and responsive to the community, 
 so that accountability is seen to operate. 

 To ensure that decisions are taken properly, openly and, where 
 appropriate, publicly and that key decisions are properly programmed 
 and subject to effective public consultation. 

 To develop and maintain a good relationship with the Chief Executive 
 of the Council and other staff, providing a contact point between the 
 majority political group and staff, and setting an example to the whole 
 organisation. 

 To nominate councillors from his/her political group to serve on all 
 appropriate councillor bodies including, as appropriate, other Outside 
 Bodies. 

Deputy Leader of the Council 

 To deputise for the Leader of the Council in his/her absence, 
undertaking those duties expected of the Leader.  

 To share and support in general the full workload of the Leader. 

Page 73



Updated 25 March 2021  Roles of Different Councillors 

Other Group Leaders 

 To ensure their party contributes effectively, positively and 
constructively to the Council’s activities 

 To act as the principal political spokesperson for their group 

 To provide leadership to the party group 

 To nominate councillors from his/her political group to serve on all 
 appropriate councillor bodies including, as appropriate, other Outside 
 Bodies. 

Chairs of Committees 

 To chair the committee and ensure its overall effectiveness 

 To have a working knowledge of the Council’s relevant policies and 
strategies and ensure he/she is sufficiently and effectively briefed on 
matters coming before the committee 

 To coordinate and manage the work of their committee 

 To act as the Council’s spokesperson on the work of his/her 
Committee, Sub-Committees, Panels and Groups in accordance with 
the Council’s communications protocol.  

 To enable the smooth and orderly conduct of business within the 
Council’s Constitution. 

 To provide leadership and direction for the committee. 

 To determine priorities in light of the volume of work presented to the 
Committee. 

 To ensure an orderly debate or deliberation of the business in hand. 

 To report on the workings of his/her Committee, Sub-Committees, 
Panels or Working Groups to the Council, and to present, where 
appropriate, recommendations to the Council. 

 To allow proper consideration of any item. 

 To ensure that their Committee, Sub-Committees, Panels or Working 
Groups take balanced decisions based on all relevant evidence, with 
impartiality and fairness. 

 To ensure, with the Chief Executive, that Committee decisions are 
recorded with full justifications/reasoning. 

 To develop a thorough understanding of the subject area of the 
Committee, including relevant legislation and policies. 

 To bring, where appropriate, the views of co-opted members (if any) to 
the attention of the Council. 

 To liaise with staff in formulating agendas and future work plans, and to 
attend any meetings with staff to discuss matters relevant to the 
business of the Committee, Sub-Committees, Panels or Working 
Groups. 

Page 74



Updated 25 March 2021  Roles of Different Councillors 

 Where appropriate, to liaise with other interested parties in establishing 
co-opted membership, and topics for consideration. 

 Where applicable, to liaise with other tiers of local government and to 
contribute to any other joint working arrangements. 

 Where applicable, to lead such site visits that may assist councillors 
arriving at a considered decision. 

To undertake specific training including updates in the law pertaining to 
the work of the Committee. 

 

Committee Vice-Chairs 

 To fully support the Chair in the execution of his/her duties as agreed 
between the two postholders. 

 To deputise for the Chair in his/her absence, undertaking those duties 
expected of the Chair and encompassed in the role description for that 
position. 

 To act as the Committee’s spokesperson on relevant issues in the 
absence of the Chair in accordance with the Council’s communications 
protocol.  

 

Committee member 

Key duties 

 To participate in Committee discussions. 

 To give proper consideration to items before and during meetings. 

 To consider before each meeting any possible conflicts of interests 
arising from the agenda items and register/declare those interests as 
appropriate in accordance with the Council’s Members Code of 
Conduct 

 To offer opinions based upon an understanding of the legal 
requirements of the subject discussed. 

 To inform the Committee of constituents’ opinions (if appropriate). 

 To take into consideration a range of views and issues when reaching 
a decision and to keep an open mind before reaching a decision. 

 To be clear as to reasons for taking decisions and be ready and able to 
articulate those reasons if required. 

 To be accountable for decisions taken 

 To conduct oneself with dignity and decorum when offering views 
which differ from those of other councillors. 

 To undertake appropriate site visits. 

 To undertake specific training including updates in the law pertaining to 
the work of the Committee. 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 4 section (a) 

Updated 25 March 2021 Council Standing Orders  

COUNCIL STANDING ORDERS  

CONTENTS 

1. TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS 

2. NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS 

3. CHAIRING OF MEETINGS 

4. QUORUM 

 

BOOKMARKS TO BE COMPLETED 

 

Page 77



Part 4 section (a) 

Updated 25 March 2021 Council Standing Orders  

 

These Standing Orders are the rules which apply to meetings of the Council 
and should be read in conjunction with the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules and the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules  

1. TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS 

4.1 Meetings of the Council and Committees will normally take place at 
7.00pm in the Council Chamber at the Council Offices, Knowle Green, 
Staines unless otherwise notified by the proper officer in the summons 
to the meeting.  

4.2 Meetings of Sub-Committees, Panels, Working and Task Groups will 
normally take place during the daytime, subject to councillors’ 
availability.  

2. NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS 

4.3 The Chief Executive will notify the public of the time and place of any 
meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Rules. At least 
five clear working days before a meeting, (unless the law requires the 
business to be transacted by a particular date) the Chief Executive will 
send a summons signed by him/her to every councillor giving the date, 
time and place of the meeting and specifying the business to be 
transacted, and will be accompanied by any reports which are 
available. 

4.4 The Chief Executive may cancel a meeting of the Council or its 
Committees where the agenda has already been issued if it is 
considered expedient to do so.  The Chief Executive shall not exercise 
such power without prior consultation with the Mayor or the Committee 
Chair (as appropriate).  Any outstanding business will be held over to 
the next scheduled meeting on a date to be arranged. 

5. CHAIRING OF MEETINGS 

5.1 The Mayor, if present, will chair the meeting.  If the Mayor is absent the 
Deputy Mayor will take the chair. If both the Mayor and Deputy Mayor 
are absent, the councillors present will elect any past Mayor present to 
take the Chair for the meeting.  

5.2 The references to the Mayor also include the Chair of any Committee 
or Sub-Committee and references to Deputy Mayor also include the 
Vice-Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee, unless the matter 
relates to Council meetings only.  

5.3 The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power of duty of 
the Mayor.  

6. QUORUM 

(a) The quorum of the Council is one quarter of the total number of 
councillors and no business shall be considered unless a quorum 
is present. 

(b) If there is no quorum present at the time set for the start of a 
meeting, the start will be delayed for 30 minutes and if a quorum 

Page 78



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

is still not present the meeting will stand adjourned to another 
day. 

(c) If, during the meeting, the Mayor declares that there is no 
quorum, the meeting will adjourn immediately for up to 10 
minutes. If the meeting is not quorate after 10 minutes the 
meeting will stand adjourned. 

(d) Any business remaining shall be dealt with on a date and time 
fixed by the Mayor or if a date and time is not found, at the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council. 

 

7. DURATION OF MEETING 

7.1 The Chief Executive or his representative at any Council meeting will 
indicate to the councillors present when any meeting has lasted for 3 
hours.   

7.2 Unless the majority of councillors present then agree that the meeting 
should continue, it will automatically be adjourned.   Any business not 
considered will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Mayor.  If 
the Mayor does not fix a date the remaining business will be 
considered at the next ordinary meeting. 

8. ORDINARY MEETINGS 

8.1 Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a 
programme decided at, or before, the Council’s annual meeting or as 
otherwise agreed from time to time by the Council. 

8.2 The Council will sing the National Anthem, led by the Mayor, at the 
commencement of proceedings, or at such point in the proceedings as 
the Mayor may otherwise direct. 

8.3 The agenda at an ordinary Council meeting will normally be to:- 

(a) Elect a person to preside if neither the Mayor or Deputy Mayor 
are present;  (see Standing Order 3.1) 

(b) Receive any apologies for absence; 

(c) Approve the minutes of the last meeting; 

(d) Receive any declarations of interest from councillors; 

(e) Receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader (or his 
nominated spokesperson), Committee Chairs and/or the Chief 
Executive; 

(f) Receive questions from members of the public and hear the 
Leader or other appropriate councillor provide answers; 

(g) Receive petitions; (See Standing Order 16) 

(h) Deal with any business from the last Council meeting; 

(i) Deal with referrals from Service Committees in accordance with 
the Reservation Scheme (Part 4c) 

Page 79



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

(j) Deal with any recommendations from the Committees, 

(k) Receive reports from the Committee Chairs and any questions 
arising from those reports; 

(l) Receive reports about and hear questions and answers on the 
business of joint arrangements and external organisations. 

(m) Consider motions; 

(n) Hear the Leader or his nominee or appropriate Committee Chairs 
answer any questions from councillors on matters generally 
affecting the Borough or for which their committee has 
responsibility; and 

(o) Consider any other business specified in the summons to the 
meeting. 

9. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS 

9.1 Calling Extraordinary Meetings 

 Those listed below may request the Chief Executive to call Council 
meetings in addition to ordinary meetings of the Council: 

(a) The Council by resolution; 

(b) The Mayor; 

(c) The Monitoring Officer; and 

(d) Any five councillors if they have signed a requisition presented to 
the Mayor and the Mayor has refused to call a meeting or has 
failed to call a meeting within seven days of the presentation of 
the requisition.  

9.2 Date of Extraordinary meeting 

When considering a requisition, the Mayor shall decide, in consultation 
with the Chief Executive whether the meeting should be called on the 
same date as the next scheduled ordinary meeting of the Council or an 
alternative date in wholly exceptional circumstances.  

9.3 Business 

The business at an extraordinary meeting will be confined to 
consideration of the specific issue(s) for which it was called. 

10. ANNUAL MEETING 

10.1 Timing and business 

In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the annual 
meeting will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing 
councillors.  In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in 
May. 

10.2 The Council will sing the National Anthem, led by the Mayor, at the 
commencement of proceedings, or at such point in the proceedings as 
the Mayor may otherwise direct. 

 

Page 80



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

The Annual meeting will: 

(a) Elect a person to preside if the Mayor is not present; 

(b) Elect a councillor to be the Mayor of the Council; 

(c) Elect a councillor to be Deputy Mayor of the Council; 

(d) Approve the minutes of the last ordinary meeting; 

(e) Receive any declarations of interest; 

(f) Receive announcements from the Mayor; 

(g) Elect councillors to be the Leader and Deputy Leader for the next 
municipal year; 

(h) Approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the 
year if one has not previously been agreed; and 

(i) Consider any business set out in the notice convening the 
meeting. 

10.3 Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies 

At the Annual meeting, the Council will: 

(a) Decide which committees and sub-committees to establish for the 
municipal year; 

(b) Decide the size and terms of reference for those committees; 

(c) Decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance 
with the political balance regulations; 

(d) Appoint the Leader and Deputy Leader to be the Chair and Vice-
Chair respectively of the Policy and Resources Committee; 

(e) appoint the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of the other Service 
committees on a politically proportionate basis; and where 
feasible these positions on any one Committee being filled by 
members from different political groups. 

(f) Appoint the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of sub-committees, where 
necessary; 

(g) receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each committee 
and those councillors to stand as substitute members on each 
Committee, 

(h) Appoint to outside bodies  

The Council may however decide at subsequent meetings to dissolve 
committees, alter their terms of reference or appoint new committees. 

11. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-
COMMITTEES 

11.1 [A Councillor may nominate another Councillor of his or her own 
political group to act as a substitute in the absence of the nominating 
Councillor at a meeting of a committee or sub-committee, in 
accordance with the Substitution Scheme set out in Part 4(c) 

Page 81



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

12. MINUTES 

12.1 Signing the Minutes 

The Mayor will sign the minutes of a meeting at the next suitable 
meeting.  The Mayor will move that the minutes of the previous meeting 
be confirmed and signed as a correct record.  The only part of the 
minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy. 

12.2 No Requirement to Sign Minutes of Previous Meeting at 
Extraordinary Meeting 

 Where, in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of 
signing the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 
12 to the Local Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then 
the next following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than 
under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the 
purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of schedule 12 relating to signing 
of minutes. 

12.3 Form of Minutes 

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and 
order the Mayor put them. 

 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

13.1 Where in relation to an item on the agenda, a councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, that interest should be declared at 
the start of the meeting by giving full details of the interest and the item 
to which it relates.  The councillor must thereafter leave the room when 
that matter falls to be discussed and take no part in the debate or the 
vote for that business. 

13.2 Where in relation to an item on the agenda, a councillor has  

(a) a Non-Pecuniary interest arising under paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Co-opted Members (the 
“Members’ Code of Conduct”) (membership of outside bodies 
etc.), or, 

(b) any other Conflict of Interest; 

then such interest should be declared at the start of the meeting by 
giving full details of the interest and the item to which it relates.  A 
councillor is not required to leave the room when the item is debated 
but may do so if, in the opinion of the councillor concerned, it is 
advisable in all the circumstances of the case.  A councillor with such 
an interest, who has remained for the debate, is entitled to speak and 
vote on the matter to which it relates.  

14. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 

14.1 Where the Committee is reporting a matter which is reserved to 
Council the relevant Committee Chair (or a member of the relevant 
committee nominated by the chair of that committee) will introduce the 

Page 82



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

report. The normal rules of debate will apply to any debate on the 
recommendations.   

14.2 A Councillor may ask a question on any recommendation from 
Committees in accordance with standing order 14.1.  

15. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN COUNCIL 

15.1 General 

Meetings of the Council will allow for a period not exceeding 30 
minutes during which time members of the public may ask the Leader 
or Committee/Sub-Committee Chairs questions relating to matters over 
which the Council has powers or duties or which affect the Borough. 
The purpose of such questions is to obtain information or press for 
action; they should not be framed primarily so as to convey information 
or a particular point of view.    

15.2 Order of Questions 

Questions will be asked in the order received, except that the Mayor 
may group together similar questions. 

15.3 Notice of Questions 

A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering 
the question in writing or by email to the Chief Executive and/or 
Committee Services no later than 5pm seven working days prior to the 
day of the Council meeting.   

Each question must give the name and address of the questioner..   

15.4 Number of Questions 

At any one meeting no person or organisation may submit more than 
one question. No question shall exceed 100 words.  

15.5 Scope of Questions 

The Chief Executive may reject a question if it: 

(a) Is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 
which specifically affects the Borough; 

(b) Is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;  

(c) Is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 
meeting of the Council in the past six months; 

(d) Relates to a specific planning or licensing application; or 

(e) Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 

15.6 Record of Questions 

The Chief Executive will keep a record of each question and will, on 
receipt, send a copy of the question to the Councillor to whom it is to be 
put. Rejected questions will include reasons for rejection. 

Questions and the answers given will be recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting. 

 

Page 83



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

15.7 Asking the Question at the Meeting 

The Mayor will invite the questioner to put the question to the councillor 
named in the notice.  If a questioner who has submitted a written 
question is unable to be present, they may ask the Mayor to put the 
question on their behalf.  The Mayor may ask the question on the 
questioner’s behalf and indicate that a written reply will be given or 
decide, in the absence of the questioner, that the question will not be 
dealt with. 

15.8 Supplementary Question 

No supplementary questions will be allowed. 

15.9 Written Answers 

Any question which cannot be dealt with during public question time, 
either due to lack of time, or the non-attendance of the councillor to 
whom it was to be put, or because not all the information was available, 
will be dealt with by a written answer. 

15.10 Reference of Question to a Committee or Sub-Committee 

Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on 
any question, but any councillor may move that a matter raised by a 
question be referred to a Committee or Sub-Committee. Once 
seconded, such a motion will be voted on without discussion. 

 

16. QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS 

16.1 Questions on notice at Council 

Subject to standing order 16.3, a Councillor may ask the relevant Chair 
of any Committee or Sub-Committee a question on any matter in 
relation to which the Council has powers and duties or which 
specifically affects the Borough.  

Where the matter does not fall within the remit of a Committee, the 
Leader may respond. 

Councillors’ question time will be limited to 30 minutes (although the 
Mayor will have the discretion to extend this to allow supplementary 
questions to be asked and answered in respect of a question within the 
30 minutes.) 

16.2 Notice of questions 

A Councillor may only ask a question under Standing Order 16.2 if they 
have given notice of the question in writing or by email to the Chief 
Executive and/or Committee Services? by no later than 5pm seven 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

No Councillor may give notice to ask more than one question at any 
one meeting. No question shall exceed 100 words. The Councillor may 
subsequently give notice, in writing or by email, received by the Chief 
Executive and/Committee Services no later than the scheduled start 
time of the meeting that he/she wishes to withdraw the question. 

Page 84



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

The purpose of the question under Standing Order 16.1 and 16.2 is to 
obtain information or a press for action; they should not be framed 
primarily so as to convey information or a particular point of view.  

The Chief Executive shall reject a question if it is substantially the 
same as a question which has been answered at a meeting of the 
Council in the past 6 months. 

The Chief Executive may also reject a question if it contains arguments 
and/or expressions of opinion that are offensive, defamatory or 
frivolous.  

The ability contained within these Standing Orders for councillors to 
ask questions at Council should be used in conjunction with 
appropriate engagement with officers, in order to ascertain such 
information as is required, or discuss and address concerns with any 
necessary action taken promptly, to help individual councillors 
undertake their role effectively.     

16.3 Response  

Every question shall be put and answered without discussion. An 
answer to a question or supplementary question may take the form of: 

(a) A direct oral answer; 

(b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or 
other published work, a reference to that publication; or 

(c) A written response provided at the meeting; or 

(d) Where the reply to a supplementary question, cannot 
conveniently be given orally, a written answer will be circulated 
later to the questioner within 7 days of the date of the meeting.  

The answer should address the points contained in the question.  

In the absence of the Committee Chair to whom the question is to be 
put or for any other reason, the Vice-Chair will reply or will nominate 
another Committee or Sub-Committee member to provide an oral 
response.  

16.4 Supplementary Questions 

If clarification of a reply is required, the questioner may ask one 
supplementary question. The supplementary question must arise 
directly out of the answer given or is required to clarify some part of the 
answer.  

16.5 Record 

The original question and the reply will be recorded in full in the 
minutes. A summary will be given of any supplementary questions and 
replies.  

16.6 Written Answers 

Where the Mayor considers that any question cannot be dealt with: 
 

(a) because of lack of time; or 

Page 85



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

(b) because of non-attendance of the Councillor who was to answer 
the question  

 
then the Mayor may direct that any question and answer shall be given 
in writing without being read aloud at the meeting. 

 
 Where the Mayor directs written questions and answers in advance of 

the meeting, the question and answer shall be made available in writing 
at the meeting and shall be incorporated within the minutes of the 
meeting. 

 
Nothing within Standing Order 14.7 shall prevent a councillor from 
putting a supplementary question at the meeting, except that the Mayor 
may direct any supplementary question to be answered in writing at a 
later date to enable a properly considered response to be given.  
 

16.7 The Order of Questions 
Questions will be listed on the agenda in the order in which they were 
received by the Chief Executive and/or the Monitoring Officer.  
 

16.8 Ward Concerns 
Ward concerns will be addressed in accordance with standing order 
34.2 
 

17. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

17.1 If a petition is presented and relates to a matter in respect of which the 
Council has powers or duties or which affects the Borough, and it 
contains more than 4,500 signatures (1,000 for a single ward issue), it 
will automatically be referred to Council for debate in accordance with 
the Petition Scheme.    

17.2 Presentation of a petition on the following business will not be allowed, 
as set out in the Petition Scheme: 

(a) matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local 
Government Access to Information Act 1985; or 

(b) planning applications 

(c) licensing applications  

(d) statutory petitions 

17.3 A petition organiser may present the petition to the Council meeting for 
no more than 3 minutes, provided that confirmation has been given to 
the Council’s Committees Section at least 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

17.4 The Mayor will request any Councillor present at the meeting to move 
a motion to: 

(a)  take the action the petition requests; or 

(b)  not to take the action requested for reasons put forward in the 
debate; or 

Page 86



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

(c)  note the petition and keep the matter under review; or  

(d)  if the content relates to a matter on the agenda for the meeting 
the petition be considered when the item is debated; or 

(e)  the petition be referred to the relevant Committee for further 
consideration  

 

17.5 Once the motion is seconded the petition will be discussed in 
accordance with the rules of debate. Any Councillor can move an 
alternative motion stated in 15.4 which will be seconded and debated 
as any amended motion.  

17.6 The petition organiser will receive written confirmation of the decision. 

 

18. MOTIONS ON NOTICE 

18.1 Any councillor may give notice of a motion for consideration at any 
ordinary meeting of the Council. 

18.2 Notice 

These will be recorded in a book, open to public inspection. 

18.3 Notice of any motion, except one which under these Standing Orders 
can be moved without notice, must be given in writing or email to the 
Chief Executive at least seven clear working days prior to the day of 
the Council meeting. (This will enable the information to be published 
with the Council agenda) 

18.4 Motion Set Out In the Agenda 

Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in 
the order in which they are received, unless prior to publication of the 
agenda the councillor giving notice states, in writing or email, that they 
propose to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it. 

18.5 Scope of Motion 

 Every Motion must relate to matters in which the Council has powers or 
duties and must not include declaratory statements relating to matters 
outside the ambit of the Council. Motions should be about something 
for which the Council has responsibilities, or which affects the Borough. 
Motions should be about a single discreet issue and not be in the 
opinion of the Chief Executive defamatory, frivolous, offensive or 
otherwise out of order. 

 No motion shall exceed 100 words in length.  

18.6 Motion Not Moved 

If a motion set out in the summons is not moved, either by the 
councillor who gave notice or by some other councillor on their behalf, 
it shall, unless the Council agrees otherwise, be treated as withdrawn.  
The motion may not be moved without fresh notice. 

 

Page 87



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

19. MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE 

The following motions may be moved without notice, and will then be 
followed by no more than the number of speakers in brackets: 

(a) To appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is 
moved (none); 

(b) In relation to the accuracy of the minutes (no limit); 

(c) To change the order of business on the agenda (none); 

(d) To refer something to an appropriate Committee or Sub-
Committee (no limit); 

(e) To appoint a committee or councillor arising from an item on the 
summons for the meeting (no limit); 

(f) To withdraw a motion (none); 

(g) To extend the time limit for speeches (none); 

(h) To amend a motion (no limit); 

(i) To proceed to the next business (none, except a right of reply in 
accordance with standing order **); 

(j) That the question be now put (none, except a right of reply in 
accordance with standing order **); 

(k) To adjourn a debate (none); 

(l) To adjourn a meeting (none); 

(m) To suspend a particular Standing Order (two); 

(n) To exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules (two); 

(o) To not hear further a councillor named under Standing Order 24.3 
or to exclude them from the meeting under Standing Order 24.4 
(none); 

(p) To give the consent of the Council where its consent is required 
by the Constitution (no limit) 

(q) To continue the meeting beyond 3 hours (none). 

20. RULES OF DEBATE 

20.1 No Speeches until Motion Seconded 

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded. 

20.2 Right to Require Motion in Writing 

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Mayor may 
require it to be written down and handed to the Chief Executive before 
it is discussed. 

 

 

Page 88



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

20.3 Seconder’s Speech 

When seconding a motion or amendment, a councillor may reserve 
their speech until later in the debate. 

20.4 Content and Length of Speeches 

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a 
personal explanation or point of order. 

No speech may exceed FIVE minutes without the consent of the Mayor 
and may only exceed ten minutes with the consent of the Council. 

20.5 When a Member May Speak Again 

A councillor who has spoken on a motion or an amendment may not 
speak again whilst it is the subject of debate, except: 

(a) In exercise of a right of reply; 

(b) On a point of order; or 

(c) By way of personal explanation. 

20.6 Amendments To Motions 

An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and either 
be: 

i) To refer the matter to an appropriate Committee or Sub-
Committee for consideration or reconsideration; 

ii) To leave out words; 

iii) To leave out words and add others; or 

iv) To add words. 

20.7 An amendment which forms the negative of the motion will not be 
allowed. Councillors should aim to keep the length of the amendment 
in line with that of the motion, which shall not exceed 100 words in 
length.  

20.8 The Mayor may require the amendment to be written down and handed 
to the Chief Executive before it is discussed. 

20.9 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.   

No further amendment may be moved until the amendment under 
discussion has been voted on or withdrawn by the mover and 
seconder. Amendments to motions must be moved at the earliest 
possible opportunity during the debate.  

20.10 If an amendment is not agreed, other amendments to the original 
motion may be moved. 

20.11 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of 
the original motion.  This becomes the substantive motion to which any 
further amendments are moved. 

20.12 After an amendment has been carried, the Mayor will read out the 
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there 

Page 89



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

are none, or if no member indicates they wish to speak, he/she will put 
it to the vote. 

A diagram showing how decisions can be made is at Appendix 1. 

20.13 Alteration of Motion 

(a) A councillor may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice 
with the consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified 
without discussion; 

(b) A councillor may alter a motion which he/she has moved without 
notice with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The 
meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion.  

(c) Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be 
made. 

20.14 Withdrawal of Motion 

A councillor may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the 
consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting’s consent 
will be signified without discussion.  No councillor may speak on the 
motion after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless 
permission is refused. 

20.15 Right of Reply 

(a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the 
debate on the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. 

(b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has 
the right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, 
but may not otherwise speak on it.  

(c) If an amendment has already been carried, the mover of that is 
deemed to be the mover of the substantive motion and therefore 
has the right of reply at the close of the debate on a further 
amendment. 

(d) The mover of an amendment has no right of reply to the debate 
on his or her amendment. 

20.16 Motions which May Be Moved During Debate 

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except 
the following procedural motions: 

(a) To withdraw a motion; 

(b) To amend a motion; 

(c) To proceed to the next business; 

(d) That the question be now put (if an amendment is being debated, 
the amendment will be voted on); 

(e) To adjourn a debate; 

(f) To adjourn a meeting; 

Page 90



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

(g) To exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access 
To Information Procedure Rules; and 

(h) To not hear further a councillor named under Standing Order 24.3 
or to exclude them from the meeting under Standing Order 24.4; 
and 

(i) That the meeting continue beyond 3 hours in duration. 

20.17 Closure motions 

A councillor may move, without comment, the following motions at the 
end of a speech of another councillor: 

(a) To proceed to the next business; 

(b) That the question be now put; 

(c) To adjourn a debate; or 

(d) To adjourn a meeting. 

20.18 If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Mayor 
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, the Mayor will put the 
procedural motion to the vote.  If it is passed the Mayor will give the 
mover of the original motion a right of reply before putting the motion to 
the vote. 

20.19 If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Mayor 
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, the Mayor will put the 
procedural motion to the vote.  If it is passed the Mayor will give the 
mover of the original motion a right of reply before putting the motion to 
the vote. 

20.20 If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded 
and the Mayor thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed and 
cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, the Mayor will put 
the procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the 
original motion the right of reply. 

20.21 Point of Order 

A councillor may raise a point of order at any time.  The Mayor will hear 
them immediately.  A point of order may only relate to an alleged 
breach of these Standing Orders or the law.  The councillor must 
indicate the Standing Order or law and the way in which he/she 
considers it has been broken.  The ruling of the Mayor on the matter 
will be final. 

20.22 Personal Explanation 

A councillor may make a personal explanation at any time.  A personal 
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech 
by the councillor which may appear to have been misunderstood in the 
present debate.  The ruling of the Mayor on the admissibility of a 
personal explanation will be final. 

 

 

Page 91



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

21. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Mayor, the Leader, Chairs of Committees and the Chief Executive 
may make announcements of which notice is not required.   

22. PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS 

22.1 Motion to Rescind A Previous Decision 

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of 
Council within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice 
of motion is signed by at least twelve councillors. 

22.2 Motion Similar to One Previously Rejected 

A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected 
at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless 
the notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least twelve 
councillors.  Once the motion or amendment has been dealt with, no 
one can propose a similar motion or amendment for six months unless 
it is signed by at least twelve councillors. 

23. VOTING 

23.1 Majority 

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided 
by a simple majority of those councillors voting and present in the room 
at the time the question was put.  

23.2 Voting at Regulatory Committees 

No member at a Regulatory Committee may vote unless they have 
been present for the entire consideration of the item under discussion. 

23.3 Chairman’s Casting Vote 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Mayor will have 
a second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction on how the Mayor 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

23.4 Show of Hands 

Unless a recorded vote is requested, the Mayor will take the vote by 
show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the 
meeting. 

23.5 Recorded Vote 

(a) If any councillor present at the meeting requests it before the vote 
is taken, the names for and against the motion or amendment or 
abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and entered 
into the minutes. 

(b) Where the Council makes a budget decision either (i) a 
calculation in accordance with the Local Government and Finance 
Act 1992 or (ii) issues a precept under Chapter 4 of Part 1 of that 
Act then a recorded vote shall be held. For the avoidance of 
doubt this applies to proposed amendments as well as to the 
original and any substantive motion.     

Page 92



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

23.6 Right to Require Individual Vote To Be Recorded 

Where any councillor requests it immediately after the vote is taken, 
their vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they 
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting. 

23.7 Voting on Appointments 

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled 
and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then 
the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off 
the list and a new vote taken.  The process will continue until there is a 
majority of votes for one person. 

In relation to the appointment of Chairs of Committees and in the event 
of deadlock, the Chair will be elected by drawing lots. 

 

24. OFFICERS SPEAKING DURING DEBATES 

24.1 Any Chief Officer or his representative may signify his wish to speak.  
The Mayor shall then use his discretion to call upon the Officer at an 
appropriate point during the debate.  The subject matter on which an 
Officer may speak shall be confined to:  

i) providing relevant information; or 

ii) explanation or interpretation of any law, regulation, protocol or 
procedure. 

24.2 The Mayor may, at his discretion, permit a councillor to seek, through 
the Chair, the opinion of any Officer present at the meeting on a 
particular point. 

24.3 Any Officer may be called upon to speak by the Mayor who shall 
indicate the subject matter. 

24.4 Where an Officer is presenting a report of which prior notice has been 
given, the above rules do not apply, in relation to the presentation 

25. COUNCILLORS’  CONDUCT 

25.1 Role of the Mayor 

The Mayor is required to ensure that the meeting is conducted in a 
calm atmosphere of decorum.  

25.2 Standing to Speak 

When councillors speak at Council they must stand and address the 
meeting through the Mayor, unless the Mayor’s permission has been 
obtained for the relevant Councillor to remain seated.  If more than one 
councillor stands, the Mayor will ask one to speak and the others must 
sit.  Other councillors must remain seated whilst a councillor is 
speaking unless they wish to make a point of order or a point of 
personal explanation. 

 

 

Page 93



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

25.3 Mayor Standing 

When the Mayor stands during a debate, any councillor speaking at the 
time must stop and sit down.  The meeting must be silent. 

25.4 Member Not to Be Heard Further 

If a councillor persistently disregards the ruling of the Mayor by 
behaving improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, 
the Mayor may move that the councillor be not heard further.  If 
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 

25.5 Member to Leave the Meeting 

If the councillor continues to behave improperly after such a motion is 
carried, the Mayor may move that either the councillor leaves the 
meeting or that the meeting is adjourned for a specified period.  If 
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 

25.6 General Disturbance 

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, 
the Mayor may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks 
necessary. 

26. DISTURBANCE BY THE PUBLIC 

26.1 Removal of Member of the Public 

If a member of the public interrupts or intrudes upon proceedings or 
otherwise prevents the orderly business of the meeting, the Mayor will 
warn the person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt etc., the 
Mayor will order their removal from the meeting room. 

26.2 Clearance of Part of Meeting Room 

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open 
to the public, the Mayor may call for that part to be cleared. 

27. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in 
accordance with the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this 
Constitution or under Standing Order 26 (Disturbance by public). 

28. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 

All councillors present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign 
their names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every 
meeting to assist with the record of attendance. 

29. PHOTOGRAPHY AND AUDIO/VISUAL RECORDING OF MEETINGS 

Audio/visual recording at Council meetings is permitted in accordance 
with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 and 
in accordance with the Council’s protocol in part 5 of the Constitution. 

 

 

Page 94



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

30. SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL STANDING 
ORDERS 

30.1 Suspension 

All of these Standing Orders except for Standing Orders 23.6 (enabling 
a councillor to record their vote) or 12.1 (signing of minutes) may be 
suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one half of 
the whole number of members of the Council are present.  Suspension 
can only be for the duration of the meeting. 

30.2 Amendment 

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Standing Orders will, when 
proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the 
next ordinary meeting of the Council to which the Monitoring Officer 
shall submit a report. Unless prior notice of the proposal has been the 
subject of consideration and report by the Monitoring Officer and has 
been placed on the agenda of the meeting. 

31. APPLICATION TO ALL COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTES 

All of these Standing Orders apply to meetings of Council and to 
meetings of Committee and Sub-Committees except where different 
rules apply.  

ADDITIONAL RULES APPLYING TO COMMITTEES 

32. Calling of meetings 

Each service Committee shall meet in accordance with the Calendar of 
Meetings approved by the Council and meetings will normally 
commence at 7.00pm.  
 
A Committee Chair may agree to a scheduled Committee meeting date 
being moved if it is evident that a majority of Councillors on the 
Committee would be unable to make the original date. 
 

The relevant Chair or any five Councillors on a Committee or Sub-
Committee may call an extraordinary meeting of that Committee or 
Sub-Committee to consider any matter requiring consideration, which 
cannot wait until the next ordinary meeting. 
 

The Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer may require the Chief 
Executive to convene an extraordinary meeting of any Committee or 
Sub-Committee in pursuance of their statutory duties. 
 

31. Public or private meetings of Committees 
31.1 All Committee and Sub-Committee meetings will normally be held in 

public as set out in the Access to Information Rules unless the 
consideration of a specific item of business warrants the exclusion of 
the press and public because it contains exempt or confidential 
information. 

Page 95



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

 

32. How are decisions taken? 
 

32.1 Formal decisions that have been delegated by the Council to 
Committees and Sub-Committees will be taken at a meeting convened 
in accordance with the Access to Information Rules. All Committee and 
Sub-Committee decisions are collective decisions. No formal decisions 
may be taken by the Chair of a Committee or Sub-Committee on behalf 
of the Committee or Sub-Committee. 
 

32.2 In taking decisions, Committees and Sub-Committees will accord with 
the plans and strategies set out in the Council’s Budget and Policy 
Framework and will abide by the protocols in the Constitution. 

 

33. Who presides? 
 

33.2 The appointed Chair of a Committee or Sub-Committee will preside at 
any meeting of the relevant Committee or Sub-Committee at which he 
is present. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair will preside. In 
the absence of both the Chair and Vice Chair, the meeting will elect a 
Chair for that meeting only. 

 

34. Business to be transacted. 
 

34.1 At each meeting of a Committee or Sub-Committee, the following 
business will be conducted: 
 

(a) Election of a Chair, if necessary; 
(b) Consideration of the minutes of the previous meeting; 
(c) Declarations of interest, if any; 
(d) Representations by members of the public in respect of any matters 

set out in the agenda will be dealt with using the public speaking 
rules outlined in this Constitution; 

(e) Matters arising from the relevant Committee’s section of the 
Council’s Forward Plan; 

(f) Matters requested by any member of the relevant Committee or 
Sub-Committee or referred to it by the Council 

(g) Any other matter set out on the agenda requiring a decision or 
consideration as determined by the relevant Committee or Sub-
Committee Chair 

 

34.2 At each ordinary meeting of a service committee, two Councillors (who 
are not members of the Committee) may speak for up to three minutes 
each on matters specific to their wards. 

 

Page 96



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

a) A Councillor may only speak under this procedure rule if they have 

given notice in writing or by email to the Monitoring Officer and/or 

Committee Services by no later than 12 noon, five working days before 

the meeting, indicating the issue on which they wish to speak and the 

nature of any proposal(s) to be made, and giving sufficient information 

to enable the relevant Committee Chair or Vice-Chair to provide a 

considered response. 

 
b) If by the deadline, more than two Councillors have indicated a wish to 

speak, the Monitoring Officer will draw lots to determine which two 

should be allowed to do so. 

 
c) At the end of each Councillor’s speech, the relevant Committee Chair 

or Vice-Chair (or the nominated spokesperson) will reply, addressing in 

particular any specific proposals that may have been made. 

 
d) In the absence of the Councillor who had given due notice, either of the 

other ward councillors may present the issue. If neither is willing/able to 

do so, a written answer will be produced (based on the information 

provided in accordance with this Standing Order) and included in the 

minutes of the meeting. 

 
e) No more than one ward concern item may be presented by any one 

councillor at any meeting of a committee where ward concerns are 

listed on the agenda. It is expected that presentation of ward concerns 

will be shared between councillors representing the ward and that no 

subject presented as a ward concern may be presented again to the 

relevant committee within a period of six months. 

  

35. Attendance of elected Members not appointed to a particular 
Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 
35.1 Any Councillor may attend a Committee or Sub-Committee of which he 

is not one of the appointed members. With the permission of the relevant 
Committee or Sub-Committee Chair, he/she may speak once on each 
item they request to speak on. The relevant Committee or Sub-
Committee must agree for the Councillor to speak more than once on 
any particular item or to participate in the ensuing debate. The Councillor 
attending a meeting under this rule is not entitled to vote on any item. 
Any Councillor wishing to  speak at a meeting under the provisions of 
this standing order must give the relevant committee chair at least 24 
hours’ notice of their intention to do so. 

 

 

 

 

Page 97



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

36. Attendance by others 
 

36.1 Following consultation with the relevant Deputy Chief 
Executive/Group Head, the Chair of the Committee or Sub-
Committee may agree to invite individuals other than Councillors 
and Officers to attend their meetings to discuss issues of local 
concern or provide expert opinion. 
 

37. Appointment of Sub-Committees. 
 

37.1 All Committees will  recommend to the Council the appointment of 
one or more Sub-Committees with decision-making powers to 
execute any of the functions delegated by the Council to that 
Committee.  

37.2 Membership of Sub-Committees does not need to be restricted to 
Members of the relevant parent Committee.  

 

38. Duration of Committee and sub-committee meetings 
 

38.1 Committee and sub-committee meetings will be scheduled to last a 
maximum of three hours. In exceptional circumstances, a majority of 
Members present, and voting may agree to continue the meeting for 
up to an 30 additional minutes. 
 

38.2 If at the expiration of three hours or any extended period of time, 
there are any other formal recommendations on the agenda that 
have not been dealt with, they will be deemed to be formally moved 
and seconded and the vote will be taken in the usual way, with no 
speeches allowed. 

  

39. Public Participation in Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 
 
39.1 Members of the public who either live or work in the borough are 

able to participate in Committee and Sub-Committee meetings in 
accordance with the policies and rules established by the Council 
from time to time, including the ability to submit written questions  

 

40. Planning Committee – speaking by the public and ward 
Councillors 

 
40.1 The Planning Committee will receive representations from members of 

the public and applicants in accordance with procedures agreed from 
time to time by the Committee. 
 

40.2 Any councillor may attend meetings of the Planning Committee but 
must sit separately from the members of the Committee so that it is 
clear to members of the public who are the members of the Committee.  

Page 98



Updated 25 March 2021  Standing Orders for Council 

Any councillor in attendance may, when invited to do so by the 
Chairman, speak at the meeting in relation to an item relating to his 
ward provided he/she has notified the Chairman, before the start of the 
meeting, of his wish to speak on the item. 

 
41. LICENSING COMMITTEE – SPEAKING BY WARD COUNCILLORS   

Any councillor may attend meetings of the Licensing Committee but 
must sit separately from the members of the Committee so that it is 
clear to members of the public who are the members of the Committee.  
Any councillor in attendance may, when invited to do so by the 
Chairman, speak at the meeting in relation to an item relating to his 
ward provided he has notified the Chairman, before the start of the 
meeting, of his wish to speak on the item. 

42. AUDIT COMMITTEE – ATTENDANCE BY NON-COMMITTEE 
COUNCILLORS  

Any councillor may attend meetings of the Audit Committee of which 
he/she is not a member but shall sit separately from the members of 
the Committee so that it is clear to members of the public who are the 
members of the Committee.  A councillor in attendance at such 
meetings may, when invited to do so by the Chairman, speak at the 
meeting in relation to an issue being discussed provided he/she has 
notified the Chairman before the start of the meeting of a wish to speak 
on an item. 

43. Chairing of committees 

No councillor shall hold more than one Chair’s position at any time and 
in this Standing Order "chairing" means the office of Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of a Committee.   

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 4 section (a) Appendix 1 

Updated 9/5/11  Council Standing Orders Rules of Debate 

RULES OF DEBATE 

(Diagram showing how decisions can be made) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORIGINAL MOTION 
(moved and seconded) 

Debate original motion 

AMENDMENT 
(moved and seconded) 

End of debate 

Invite mover of original motion to reply to debate 
on the amendment 

Vote on amendment 

If carried new substantive 
motion is open for debate 

If lost original motion is open 
for debate 

Any number of amendments can be moved and 
dealt with in this way (but only one at a time) 

Debate on new 
substantive motion 

Mover of original motion to reply to debate 

VOTE ON NEW 
SUBSTANTIVE MOTION 

If carried - Decision If lost - No decision 

Matter open for further motion to be 
put forward 

Debate on original 
motion 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL 
MOTION 

Page 101



Part 4 section (a) Appendix 1 

Updated 9/5/11  Council Standing Orders Rules of Debate 

 

Page 102



Part 4(b) 

 

 

 

REFERRAL OF DECISIONS OF COMMITTEES TO FULL COUNCIL 

Key Principles 

1.  (a) In relation to a matter before a Committee, the Committee 
may pass a resolution at the relevant meeting that it wishes 
to refer determination of the matter in question to the 
Council; or 

(b) In relation to a decision taken by a committee or an officer 
key decision, a minimum of three members from two or more 
political groups by written notice or e mail may ask for that 
decision to be referred to the next Council meeting for review 
and final determination. This notice must be received by the 
Proper Officer by 5pm three working days after publication of 
the decision. 

 (c) Non-aligned members may ask for a decision to be referred 
to the next Council meeting as in 1 (b) above, providing they 
receive the support of two other members from one or more 
political groups.  

2. The written notice or e-mail in 1(b) above requesting the referral 
must clearly 

(a) set out the decision/matter which the members exercising 
the right of reservation require to be reserved 

(b) specify the names of the members who have exercised the 
right of reservation 

(c) the reasons why the decision should be referred to Council  

3. In the case of a decision already having been taken by a 
committee or officer in 1(b) above, it must not be implemented until 
at least 5pm three working days after the publication of the 
decision.  

4. Once the request for ‘reservation’ has been deemed valid by the 
Proper Officer the matter will be suspended unless and until it has 

Page 103



Part 4(b) 

 

been approved at the meeting of the Council to which it was 
referred. 

5. The right to reserve such matters does not apply to urgent 
decisions. In this context, urgent decisions are those which: 

(a) cannot wait until the next scheduled meeting’ or 
(b) are defined as ‘cannot reasonably be deferred 
 
The need and reasons for urgency must be included in the report 
to the Committee or as part of the officer decision record.   

6. The right to reserve a matter will also not apply to decisions: 

 reserved to full Council 

 on regulatory matters 

 on member conduct issues. 

7. A request for a reservation made under 1 (a) may only be 
withdrawn by the referring Committee or the Chair of that 
Committee with the approval of the Council meeting to which it was 
referred.  

A request under 1(b) and (c) above can be withdrawn prior to the 
Council meeting through written notice by the 3 or more members 
who made the referral initially. 

8. The right to reserve a decision may only be exercised once in 
respect of the same decision.   

 

Page 104



Part 4(c) 

Use of Substitutes on Council Committees 
 

Key Principles 
 

1. The Council (at its Annual Meeting) will appoint specified 
substitutes for its committees and sub-committees on the 
nomination of political group leaders and in accordance with 
political proportionality rules. See 3 below. See also 11 below 
for exceptions to the substitute arrangements. 
 

2. For the purposes of this arrangement, the member being 
substituted is referred to as the “Ordinary Member” and the 
replacement as the “Substitute Member”. 

 
3. In accordance with 1 above, the allocation of members within 

each political group available to act as substitutes will be in 
accordance with the political balance on the committee 
concerned on the following basis: 

 
(a) More than 5 seats on the committee – 3 substitutes  
(b) Between 2 - 5 seats on the committee – 2 substitutes 
(c) 1 seat on the committee – 1 substitute 

 
4. The exception to 3 above will be any non-aligned members 

who may also nominate substitutes from one of the political 
groups. In this situation, Council has agreed to disapply 
political proportionality requirements in s15(5) of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1999. 

 
5. Written notice of the substitution must be delivered by the 

Ordinary Member to the Monitoring Officer and notified to 
Committee Services,  no later than 5pm on the day of the 
meeting for which the change in membership is required. This 
notice must set out the meeting in question, the name of the 
ordinary member and the name of the substitute member. The 
substitution will not be valid unless this procedure is followed. 

 
6. With the exception of the arrangement for non-aligned 

members in 4 above, the substitute member must be a 
member of the Council drawn from the same political group as 
the ordinary member who is unable to attend the meeting and 
must not already be a member of the Committee concerned. 

Page 105



Part 4(c) 

The substitute arrangement must be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting and recorded in the minutes. 

 
7. If the ordinary member attends after the substitution has been 

announced at the meeting, the substitute member will continue 
as the appointed voting member. If the substitute member fails 
to attend and the ordinary member is present, then the 
ordinary member may take their place on the committee with 
full voting rights. 

 
8. Once a meeting has started with the ordinary member in place, 

no substitution can then be made during the course of the 
meeting to replace that member. 

 
9. Where a substitute member has attended a meeting which is 

adjourned, the ordinary member may attend the reconvened 
meeting as the voting member, provided that the meeting is 
not part way through the consideration of an item or issue. 

 
10. A member acting as a substitute for the Chair or Vice-Chair of 

a committee will not, by virtue of that substitution, be entitled 
to act in either capacity.  In the absence of both the Chair and 
Vice-Chair from a meeting (and the appointment of substitute 
members to attend in their place) the meeting shall appoint a 
Chair for the meeting who may be drawn from any members 
(including any substitute member) present and with voting 
rights. 

 
11.Substitutes will not be permitted at the following meetings: 

 
(a) Asset Programme Sub-Committee 

 
 

12.The substitute member may speak and vote in their own 
capacity and is not constrained by the views of the ordinary 
member they are replacing. 

 
13. No substitute member at Regulatory Committees may vote 

unless they have been present for the entire consideration of 
the item under discussion. 
 

Page 106



Part 4(c) 

14. Only members who have received the appropriate training 
may be appointed to act as substitutes on the Regulatory 
Committees. 

 
15. Substitute members must receive copies of agendas and 

reports of the committees they are assigned to at the same 
time as ordinary members. 

 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Proposed Changes to the Constitution
	App 1 to report - summary of changes 2021
	Part1Constitutionsummaryandexplanation
	Article1TheConstitution
	Article2TheCouncilanditsMembers original
	Article3ThePublicandtheCouncil
	Article4TheCouncil
	Article5TheMayor
	Article6TheLeader
	Article7ServiceRegulatoryCommittees
	Article8TheStandardsCommittee
	Article9JointArrangements
	Article10Officers
	Article11Decisionmaking
	Article12FinanceContractsandLegalMatters
	Article13ReviewandRevisionoftheConstitution
	Article14SuspensionInterpretationandPublicationoftheConstitution
	Part3aIntroductiontotheSchemeofDelegations
	Part3bTermsofReference
	Part3cDelegationsinConsultationwith Chairmen
	Part3fRolesofDifferentCouncillors
	Part4aCouncilStandingOrders
	Part4aCouncilStandingOrdersRulesofDebate original
	Part4bReservation Scheme
	Part4cSubstitution Scheme


